
MAYOR 
Joe Purcell 

POLICE CHIEF 
Paul M. George Jr. 

HARE IN 
Montana 

The eitti of PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR 
Michael Hurff Jr. 

FINANCE OFFICER/CITY CLERK 
Andrew Lehr 

The City of Hardin is inviting you to a scheduled Zoom meeting. 

Public Hearings and City Council Meeting 
of Tuesday, September 17, 2024 

Held by virtual meeting and the Public is invited to attend in person. 
Topic: Public Hearings and City Council Meeting 

6:20 p.m. Amending the Cost of Street Maintenance in District #1 and the Cost of 
Garbage Assessments for Fiscal Year 2024-2025 

6:30 p.m. City Council Meeting 

Start Time: 6:20 p.m. Mountain Time 
The meeting will open at 6:05 p.m. 

If you will be logging into the Council meeting by: 

Computer: Please identify yourself by submitting your first and last name by using the "Chat" function. 

Phone: Please identify yourself by stating your First and Last Name. 

City of Hardin is inviting you to a scheduled Zoom meeting. 

Join Zoom Meeting 
https://us02web.zoonn.us/i/9897104479?omn=89208526303 

Meeting ID: 989 710 4479 

One tap mobile 
+17193594580„9897104479# US 

+12532050468„9897104479# US 

Dial by your location 
• +1 719 359 4580 US 
• +1 253 205 0468 US 

• +1 253 215 8782 US (Tacoma) 
• +1346 248 7799 US (Houston) 

• +1 669 444 9171 US 
• +1 669 900 9128 US (San Jose) 

• +1 309 205 3325 US 
• +1 312 626 6799 US (Chicago) 

• +1360 209 5623 US 
• +1386 347 5053 US 
• +1 507 473 4847 US 
• +1 564 217 2000 US 

• +1 646 558 8656 US (New York) 
• +1 646 931 3860 US 
• +1 689 278 1000 US 

• +1 301 715 8592 US (Washington DC) 
• +1 305 224 1968 US 

Meeting ID: 989 710 4479 

Meetings are Audio Recorded ONLY 
Montana Legislature House Bill 890 

City of Hardin 406 N Cheyenne Hardin MT 59034 Phone (406) 665-9260 Fax (406) 665-2719 



AGENDA 

September 17, 2024 

AUDIO RECORDING BEGINS 

The City of Hardin 

406 N. Cheyenne Avenue 
Hardin, MT 59034 

PUBLIC HEARINGS: 6:20 p.m. - Amending the Cost of Street Maintenance in District #1 and the Cost 
of Garbage Assessments for Fiscal Year 2024-2025 

MEETING CALLED TO ORDER AT 6:30 P.M. 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

ROLL CALL: Mayor: 
Alderpersons: Steven Hopes   Clayton Greer  Chris Sharpe 

Rock Massine   Jeremy Krebs   Antonio Espinoza  

CONSENT AGENDA: 
Council Meeting 09/03/2024 Public Hearing 09/03/2024 
Claims Closed Meeting 09/03/2024 

PUBLIC COMMENT: 

MAYOR: 

COMMITTEE REPORTS: 
• Personnel Committee/City Policy: Mayor 
• Sewer & Water: Massine 
• Law Enforcement: Hopes 
• Streets & Alleys: Espinoza 
• Parks & Playgrounds: Krebs 
• Finance/Landfill: Greer 
• Resolutions and Ordinances: Sharpe 

SPECIAL COMMITTEES: 
PETITIONS & COMMUNICATION: 

o City-County Planning Board Minutes 
o Hardin School District 17 - Active ALICE Training 
o Montana Department of Transportation Newsletter 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS: 

NEW BUSINESS: 
o City-County Planning Board Recommendation - Glick Zone Change 
o Askin Pay Application #1 -$169,058.78 
o Event Notice/Continuing Disclosure - US BANK TIF 
o Ice Slicer - $7,170.60 
o City Council Meeting - November 5, 2024 

STAFF REPORTS 
• Public Works: 
• Finance: 
• Police: 
• Legal: 
• Economic Development: 

RESOLUTIONS & ORDINANCES: 
Resolution NO. 2387 - Cancelling the 2024 Election for 2024 Local Government Review Study Commission, and 
Declaring the Election by Acclamation 

Resolution NO. 2388 - Amending Street Maintenance in District #1 FY 2024/2025 
Resolution NO. 2389 - Amending Garbage Assessments FY 2024/2025 

ANNOUNCEMENTS: 
City of Hardin Phone System: New phone number (406) 665-9260 
Alley Clean Up: September 30, 2024 - Have items out early Monday, September 30, 2024 
Request for Qualifications for CDBG: Due by Thursday, October 3, 2024 by 3:00 p.m. 
City of Hardin Job Openings: Full-time positions: General Laborer or MWI, MWII, MWIII and Police Officer. Part-time 
position: Building Inspector/Code Enforcement Apprentice. Positions are open until filled. 

Meeting adjourned at P.M. 
AUDIO RECORDING ENDS 

Additions to the Agenda can be voted on by Council to add to the Agenda for the next Council meeting. 
Agenda items will need to be submitted by Wednesday noon before a Tuesday Council meeting. 

Page 1 of 1 



September 3, 2024 - Minutes 

THE COMMON COUNCIL 
CITY of HARDIN, MONTANA 

PUBLIC HEARING: The Public Hearing for the Final Adoption of the Budget for Fiscal Year 
2024-2025 and setting mill levies, assessments and user fees was opened at 6:20 p.m. by Mayor Joe 
Purcell. 

Present at the hearing were: 
Council Members Steven Hopes, Clayton Greer, Chris Sharpe, Rock Massine, Antonio Espinoza, 
and Jeremy Krebs. 

City Staff: Finance Officer/City Clerk Andrew Lehr, Public Works Director Michael Hurff, Jr., 
Deputy City Clerk Angela Zimmer, and City Attorney Jordan Knudsen. 

Also present physically: Members of the Public 
There was not anyone present by virtual meeting. 

Mayor Purcell opened the meeting for discussion or Public Comment. 

Lehr reviewed changes to the Final Budget for Fiscal Year 2024-2025. 

Mayor Purcell asked if there were any comment. There being no further discussion, the Public 
Hearing adjourned at 6:24 p.m. 

COUNCIL MEETING: The Regular Council Meeting for September 3, 2024 was called to 
order at 6:30 p.m. Mayor Joe Purcell presiding by reciting the Pledge of Allegiance. 

The following Aldermen were present: Steven Hopes, Clayton Greer, Chris Sharpe, Rock Massine, 
Antonio Espinoza, and Jeremy Krebs. 

Also present: Finance Officer/City Clerk Andrew Lehr, Public Works Director Michael Hurff, Jr., 
Deputy City Clerk Angela Zimmer, City Attorney Jordan Knudsen, and Police Chief Paul George, 
Jr. 

Also present physically and by virtual meeting: Members of the public 

MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETINGS & CLAIMS: Greer made the motion to approve 
the Council minutes as written for August 20, 2024. Motion seconded by Sharpe. On a voice vote 
the motion was unanimously approved. Greer motioned to approve the Finance/Budget Committee 
Minutes as written for August 20, 2024. Hopes seconded. On a voice vote the motion was 
unanimously approved. Hopes motioned to approve the Closed Meeting minutes of July 16, 2024. 
Greer seconded. On a voice vote the motion was unanimously approved. 

Greer made a motion to approve the claims, for September 3, 2024. 

CLAIM No. Monthly Total 

July, 2024 31366 12,075.00 

August, 2024 31367, 31388-31418, 31421-31436 $ 175,911.23 

September, 2024 31368-31387, 31419-31420 $ 2,450.12 

Total Submitted $ 190,436.35 

Sharpe seconded. On a voice vote, the motion was unanimously approved. 

PUBLIC COMMENT: 
Jean Drew, resident, voiced she lives down the street and there has been an issue with the 

dogs next door. She reported five of them attacked a mail person. She cannot walk down the street 
with her dog; they are off-leash and they have no fence. Mayor Purcell voiced he, Knudsen, and the 

lof4 



September 3, 2024 - Minutes 

Police Chief will look at City Code. There was further discussion about the vicious dog 
ordinance and Chief Paul George provided information that can help with the reporting 
process. 

Funke extended a "Thank You" to Hurff and employees for their assistance with 
the ditch next to his home and also to the Police Department for their assistance with an 
incident. 

MAYOR: 

Personnel Policy/City Policy: 
Mayor Purcell reported the Police Service Aide (PSA) position is pending back 

ground check and the City currently has openings for General Laborer to Maintenance 
Worker III, a Police Officer, and a part -time Building Inspector/Code Enforcement 
apprentice; all positions are open until filled. 

Sewer & Water: 
Massine reported a new water line is being put in next to the hospital. 

Law Enforcement: 

Streets & Alleys: 
Espinoza reported Railway is being paved this week. 

Parks & Playgrounds: 
Krebs reported he has been working with Lehr and Hurff on the South Park 

Project. There are items on the agenda for approval that include concrete work, 
playground equipment, and a pavilion. He reported $150,000 is funded by a Land Water 
Conservation Grant the City received and another $150,000 will be funded through the 
American Rescue Plan. He has reached out to Tanner Watson, of Northwestern Energy, 
about getting power to the gazebo and splash pad when they are installed. 

Finance/Landfill: 
Resolutions & Ordinances: 

SPECIAL COMMITTEES: 

PETITIONS & COMMUNICATIONS: 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS: N/A 

NEW BUSINESS: 
Mayor Purcell reported the Wayfinding plan was put together through a grant to 

redo a logo for the City, signage for locations, services, parks, hospital etc. Greer voiced 
in the wayfinding plan, the signages look like it is leading to the West side of town and 
then all the way down P I Street. Mayor Purcell asked if the signs can be adjusted. Rachel 
Laqua, with Interstate Engineering and present by Zoom, noted they can. Mayor Purcell 
recommended looking at it again to streamline the process. She asked to please let her 
know where they are; it would be helpful. There was further discussion about the 
directions provided by the signs. Greer asked about the directional sign for the Sheriff's 
Office pointing towards Yellowtail Dam instead of to the left and Krebs asked if there 
could be one to the City Police Department. After further discussion, Mayor Purcell 
reported there should be one downtown for the Police Department. Laqua voiced they 
can be reviewed again before final placement. Hopes motioned to accept the Wayfinding 
report with those conditions. Espinoza seconded. On a voice vote the motion was 
unanimously approved. 

Mayor Purcell reported Hurff received bids from John Deere in the amount of 
$16,300 for a Gator and from Basecamp Billings in the amount of $12,929.40 for a 
Polaris. There was discussion about each vehicle. Hopes motioned to approve the 
purchase of the John Deere. Massine seconded. On a voice vote the motion passed. (5/1) 
Sharpe voting Nay. 

Mayor Purcell reviewed two bids that were submitted to repair 50 foot by 4 foot 
of sidewalk and some curb repair around South Park. Sharpe motioned to approve Hardin 

2 o14 



September 3, 2024 - Minutes 

Concrete and Construction in the amount of $6,219. Hopes seconded. On a voice vote the motion 
was unanimously approved. 

Mayor Purcell reviewed three bids that were received to install 320 feet of sidewalk at South 
Park, in front of the new development area. Krebs reported he took all three contractors to the 
location. Greer asked if they all include handicap bumps. Krebs provided information about where 
they would be installed around the new area. Greer motioned to accept the bid from Eric Day. 
Espinoza seconded. Mayor Purcell reported the bid from Day and Night Concrete in the amount of 
$25,378 for the concrete project in South Park. On a voice vote the motion was unanimously 
approved. 

Krebs reported he received bids for playground equipment for the South Park Project. He 
received three separate bids from Playground Boss for three different pieces of equipment; they 
include installation, but concrete is not included and will be an additional cost. Krebs voiced the 
bid from WillyGoat includes installation and concrete work with a total of $56,057. Mayor Purcell 
reviewed the bid amounts. Hopes motioned to accept the bid from WillyGoat. Greer seconded. On 
a voice vote the motion was unanimously approved. 

Krebs reported he received bids for a 60'x 40'x14' pavilion for the South Park Project. He 
reviewed the dimensions of the pavilion, where it would be located, and how it may be used. Krebs 
recommended the bid from U.S. National Steel for $28,117.50 that includes pillars, installation and 
shipping. Krebs noted the companies did request for the City to provide a telehandler lift to be 
available for them to use; they can rent one through Lumberzacs and the City will reimburse. Hopes 
motioned to accept the bid in the amount of $28,117.50. Greer seconded. On a voice vote the 
motion was unanimously approved. 

STAFF REPORTS: 
Public Works: 

Hurff reported he reached out to Knife River to find out if they could black top the South 200 
Block and Center Avenue while they are here paving Railway. He would have to take in the milling 
machine that same day, so he has asked them for another estimate and the price was out of range. 
Askin is still working on a price for that project. Mayor Purcell asked about the l' Street Project. 
Hurff reported there is a change order for the project. 

Finance: 
Lehr reported the new phones have been installed and the City has a new phone number; 

(406) 665-9260. 

Lehr reported the City received the payment information for the September payment for the 
Tax Increment Finance District (TIFD) debt; he submitted the application for the T-Mobile grant 
and requested the full $50,000 to help with the South Park Project; the first change order for the 1st 
Street Project was received in the amount of $5,000 as needed; there was an amendment to the grant 
the City sponsors for Lodge Grass; and the Janitor/Facilities Maintenance position has been filled. 

Police: 
Police Chief Paul George, Jr. reviewed calls for service. He reported Officer Rennie Imasa 

completed the Standardized Field Sobriety Testing Training and now all officers are certified. 
Officer Laurie Welch is now certified in Child Forensic Interview; and the Police Department is on 
the same phone system as the City. 

Legal: 

Economic Development: 
Tina Toyne reported the Crow Tribe received $2.5 Million in Home ARP funds for the 

Western Motel; she and Lehr visited with Tony Brockman, the Business Attraction Community 
Liaison with the Department of Commerce; the Request for Qualifications (RFQ) for the Economic 
Development Strategy has been posted with a deadline of October 3rd; she continues to work on the 
RFQ for the Infill and Redevelopment Housing Program to have ready by the end of September; 
she will remain the point person for the County Housing Needs Assessment and she will meet with 
AYERS Associates to set up a community tour. 

RESOLUTIONS & ORDINANCES: 
Resolution NO. 2380 — Assessing Lighting District NO. 1. Greer motioned to approve the 
resolution. Massine seconded. On a voice vote the motion was unanimously approved. 

3 of 4 



September 3, 2024 - Minutes 

Resolution NO. 2381 — Assessing Lighting District NO. 54. Hopes motioned to 
approve the resolution. Greer seconded. On a voice vote the motion was unanimously 
approved. 

Resolution NO. 2382 — Assessing the Cost of Garbage Disposal. Greer motioned to 
approve the resolution. Espinoza seconded. On a voice vote the motion was unanimously 
approved. 

Resolution NO. 2383 — Assess Unpaid Assessments Against Real Property. Hopes 
motioned to approve the resolution. Greer seconded. On a voice vote the motion was 
unanimously approved. 

Resolution NO. 2384 — Adopting the Final Budget Fiscal Year 2024/2025. Greer 
motioned to approve the resolution. Hopes seconded. On a voice vote the motion was 
unanimously approved. 

Resolution NO. 2385 — Taxes/Levies Fiscal Year 2024/2025. Greer motioned to 
approve the resolution. Hopes seconded. On a voice vote the motion was unanimously 
approved. 

Resolution NO. 2386 — Amending the Landfill Fee Schedule. Hopes motioned to 
approve the resolution. Greer seconded. On a voice vote the motion was unanimously 
approved. 

ANNOUNCEMENTS:
Mayor Purcell announced the new City Phone Number is (406) 665-9260; the City-
County Planning Board will have a Public Hearing for the Glick Zone Change request 
on Monday, September 9th at 7:00 p.m.; the Plenty Doors Community Development 
Program has a Homebuyer Education Class scheduled for Saturday, September 14th at 
the Plenty Doors Building in Crow Agency; and the Request for Qualifications for the 
Community Development Block Grant are due by Thursday, October 3, 2024 by 3:00 
p.m. 

The City of Hardin has the following Job Openings: Full time position: Police Officer 
and General Laborer or Maintenance Worker I to Maintenance Worker III. Part-Time 
position: Building Inspector/Code Enforcement Apprentice. Positions are open until 
filled. 

The Council Meeting closed at 7:45 p.m. for a CLOSED LEGAL SESSION — Legal. 

The Closed Session began at 7:46 p.m. and ended at 7:48 p.m. 

Greer motioned to adjourn the meeting at 7:48 p.m. Hopes seconded. On a voice vote 
the motion was unanimously approved. 

Joe Purcell, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

Andrew Lehr, Finance Officer/City Clerk 

4 of4 



eitg of Juviclin 

Submitted for Approval 

September 17, 2024 

Month CLAIM No. Monthly Total 

August, 2024 31437-31438, 31440-31441, 31443-31473, 
31478-31479 $ 241,291.69 

September, 2024 

31439, 31442, 31474-31476 320,427.04 

Claims Total (Expenditure 41,

August Payroll 350,061.54 

TOTAL Submitted $ 911,780.27 

Claims or Expenditures over $5,000 

per Resolution #2189 

Vendor Purpose Check # Amount 

ASKIN CONSTRUCTION 1st Street Project Schedule A & B of project 40757 167,368.19 

US BANK NATIONAL ASSOC TIED Interest Payment September -99666 300,000.00 

STAHLY ENGINEERING & ASSOCIATES INC 6th St Manhole, 1st ST Project, Wat PER 40749 15,500.31 

Previously approved at May 7, 2024 Meeting 

WHARTON ASPHALT LLC Fixing Kokomo Approach 40755 12,269.00 

Exempt from Resolution 2189 

NORTHWESTERN ENERGY Electric Utilities 40745 20,529.21 

Page 1 of 1 



CITY OF HARDIN 
Claims Report 

For the Accounting Period: August, 2024 

Vendor Claim # Check Amount 

KELSEY INDUSTRIAL CL 31437 40720 1,956.00 
FIRST INTERSTATE BANK (MASTERCARD) CL 31438 -99663 4,958.90 
3600 OFFICE SOLUTIONS INC CL 31440 40721 913.60 
BILL'S AUTO PARTS CL 31441 40730 2,731.54 
NORTHWESTERN ENERGY CL 31443 40745 20,529.21 
ALS GROUP USA, CORP. CL 31444 40722 575.00 
DARREN SINGER CL 31445 40732 64.58 
GEORGINA DENNY CL 31446 40737 88.03 
WALLY LELDER CL 31447 40754 88.03 
BIG HORN COUNTY ELECTRIC CL 31448 40724 4,495.03 
BIG HORN HOSPITAL ASSOCIATION CL 31449 40725 180.00 
BIG SKY FIRE EQUIPMENT CL 31450 40727 3,539.34 
BIG SKY TIRE & SERVICE CO LLC CL 31451 40729 1,820.00 
BIG SKY EXPRESS WASH CL 31452 40726 100.80 
DIS TECHNOLOGIES CL 31453 40733 1,017.80 
FERGUSON ENTERPRISES INC CL 31454 40734 1,807.05 
FIREMASTER DEPT 1019 CL 31455 40735 502.50 
IN CONTROL, INC CL 31456 40738 2,507.37 
JOE JOHNSON EQUIPMENT LLC CL 31457 40739 780.00 
C & B OPERATIONS LLC CL 31458 40731 830.82 
LEVEL 3 COMMUNICATIONS, LLC CL 31459 40740 482.98 
LOCKWOOD ENGINEERING CL 31460 40741 3,468.19 
PINE RIDGE FABRICATION LLC CL 31461 40746 230.00 
MOUNTAIN ALARM CL 31462 40744 464.50 
PRO-VISION SOLUTIONS, LLC CL 31463 -99661 246.41 
RDO EQUIPMENT CO. CL 31464 40747 256.39 
ST Vincent Occupational Healthcare CL 31465 40748 30.00 
THE ORIGINAL BRIEFS CL 31466 40750 660.80 
VERIZON WIRELESS CL 31467 -99662 652.57 
USA BlueBook CL 31468 40752 75.25 
UTILITIES UNDERGROUND LOC. CTR. CL 31469 40753 147.92 
APG YELLOWSTONE NEWS GROUP CL 31470 40723 200.80 
WHARTON ASPHALT LLC CL 31471 40755 12,269.00 
FRED & HEATHER CALL CL 31472 40736 1,062.50 
MONTANA SEPTIC CL 31473 40743 2,500.00 
ASKIN CONSTRUCTION CL 31478 40757 167,368.19 
MONTANA DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE CL 31479 -99664 1,690.59 

241,291.69 

Page 1 of 3 



CITY OF HARDIN 
Claims Report 

For the Accounting Period: September, 2024 

Vendor Claim # Check Amount 

US BANK NATIONAL ASSOC CL 31439 -99666 300,000.00 
ENTERPRISE FLEET MANAGEMENT CL 31442 -99665 3,471.43 
MILLENNIUM ELECTRIC CL 31474 40742 455.30 
BIG SKY LAWN CARE & PLOWING CL 31475 40728 1,000.00 
STAHLY ENGINEERING & ASSOCIATES INC CL 31476 40749 15,500.31 

320,427.04 

Page 2 of 3 



CITY OF HARDIN 
Check Report 

9/17/2024 

Vendor Claim # Check Amount 

KELSEY INDUSTRIAL CL 31437 40720 1,956.00 

3600 OFFICE SOLUTIONS INC CL 31440 40721 913.60 

ALS GROUP USA, CORP. CL 31444 40722 575.00 

APG YELLOWSTONE NEWS GROUP CL 31470 40723 200.80 

BIG HORN COUNTY ELECTRIC CL 31448 40724 4,495.03 

BIG HORN HOSPITAL ASSOCIATION CL 31449 40725 180.00 

BIG SKY EXPRESS WASH CL 31452 40726 100.80 
BIG SKY FIRE EQUIPMENT CL 31450 40727 3,539.34 
BIG SKY LAWN CARE & PLOWING CL 31475 40728 1,000.00 

BIG SKY TIRE & SERVICE CO LLC CL 31451 40729 1,820.00 
BILL'S AUTO PARTS CL 31441 40730 2,731.54 

C & B OPERATIONS LLC CL 31458 40731 830.82 
DARREN SINGER CL 31445 40732 64.58 
DIS TECHNOLOGIES CL 31453 40733 1,017.80 
FERGUSON ENTERPRISES INC CL 31454 40734 1,807.05 
FIREMASTER DEPT 1019 CL 31455 40735 502.50 
FRED & HEATHER CALL CL 31472 40736 1,062.50 
GEORGINA DENNY CL 31446 40737 88.03 
N CONTROL, INC CL 31456 40738 2,507.37 
JOE JOHNSON EQUIPMENT LLC CL 31457 40739 780.00 
LEVEL 3 COMMUNICATIONS, LLC CL 31459 40740 482.98 
LOCKWOOD ENGINEERING CL 31460 40741 3,468.19 
MILLENNIUM ELECTRIC CL 31474 40742 455.30 
MONTANA SEPTIC CL 31473 40743 2,500.00 
MOUNTAIN ALARM CL 31462 40744 464.50 
NORTHWESTERN ENERGY CL 31443 40745 20,529.21 
PINE RIDGE FABRICATION LLC CL 31461 40746 230.00 
RDO EQUIPMENT CO. CL 31464 40747 256.39 
ST Vincent Occupational Healthcare CL 31465 40748 30.00 
STAHLY ENGINEERING & ASSOCIATES INC CL 31476 40749 15,500.31 
THE ORIGINAL BRIEFS CL 31466 40750 660.80 
USA BlueBook CL 31468 40752 75.25 
UTILITIES UNDERGROUND LOC. CTR. CL 31469 40753 147.92 
WALLY LEIDER CL 31447 40754 88.03 
WHARTON ASPHALT LLC CL 31471 40755 12,269.00 
ASKIN CONSTRUCTION CL 31478 40757 167,368.19 
PRO-VISION SOLUTIONS, LLC CL 31463 -99661 246.41 
VERIZON WIRELESS CL 31467 -99662 652.57 
FIRST INTERSTATE BANK (MASTERCARD) CL 31438 -99663 4,958.90 
MONTANA DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE CL 31479 -99664 1,690.59 
ENTERPRISE FLEET MANAGEMENT CL 31442 -99665 3,471.43 
US BANK NATIONAL ASSOC CL 31439 -99666 300,000.00 

561,718.73 

Page 3 of 3 



CITY-COUNTY PLANNING BOARD 

CITY OF HARDIN/BIG HORN COUNTY, 

SEP 10 2024 PO Box 305 

I HARDIN MT 59034-0305 
Regular Meeting of the CCPB 

August 12, 2024 

The regular meeting of the City County Planning Board was called to order by Corinna Kirschenmann at 
7:03 pm on August 12, 2024. CCPB member present were: Jeff Hooker, Cyndy Maxwell, Chris 
Winterrowd, Dan Lowe and Carla Colstad. Tina Toyne was present via Zoom as was Forrest Mandeville. 
Bill Hodges was unable to attend. 

The Public Hearing was opened and Natasha Morton was invited to speak to the Board regarding her 
zoning change request. Ms. Morton explained that the current zoning of R1 was not compatible with the 
current use of the property nor in compatibility with other properties in the same area. She requested the 
change to R2 to allow for consistency in the use, both past and present, of this property and to assure that 
a sale of said property would be correct in its usage. 

There were no members of the public present who wished to comment on Ms. Morton's request. The 
Public Hearing was closed and the Board proceeded to business. 

Minutes of the June 10, 2024 meeting were reviewed, with Cyndy Maxwell motioning to approve, Chris 
Winterrowd seconding and unanimous approval received from the Board. 

The financial statement was reviewed. Cyndy Maxwell motioned to approve, Carla Colstad seconded and 
unanimous approval was given by the Board. The Chairwoman reviewed and approved bills to be paid. 

OLD BUSINESS 
It was noted that the City Council has approved the Patrick Sargent variance request. 
Relating to the continuation of community decay issues, a discussion of the Growth Management Plan 
was opened by Carla Colstad. After a brief discussion it was decided that knowing the price of the previous 
plan would help the Board determine how much money should be anticipated being spent and when this 
expense might need to be incurred. Secretary Linda Hill was instructed by the Board to research this 
information and report to the Board at the next meeting. 
Chairwoman Kirschenmann reported that she had contacted the State regarding the use of funds in the 
Board's coffers. She reported that the State informed her that those funds could not be "lent" or "given" 
to individuals for improvements of their property. But the state does have funds, which can be applied 
for, with the Board contributing their own funds, for a community improvement project. It was agreed 
that Ms Kirschenmann would invite the state to meet with the Board regarding ideas and community 
improvement program suggestions. 

NEW BUSINESS 
Without discussion Chris Winterrowd motioned, Carla Colstad seconded and the Board unanimously 
approved Ms. Morton's request for a zone change. 
After a brief discussion Jeff Hooker moved and Carla Colstad seconded and the Board unanimously 
approved that the Mill Levy per centage remain the same as last year. 

ANNOUNCEMENTS 
One Health needs an RFP — board members were able to view the proposed plans for the housing. 
Maverick has indicated they will begin construction in November 
Dairy Queen is planning a November opening 



CITY-COUNTY PLANNING BoARD PO Box 305 

CITY OF HARDIN/BIG HORN COUNTY HARDIN MT 59034-0305 

BMX bike staff demonstrated in the Park recently 
City Council Meeting scheduled for the 20th

The bowling alley is again open 
Farmers Market every Thursday 
Reminder that August 15th citizens are able to file for the Property Tax Rebate 
Dollar General store is being built 
The city is building a new sand shed 

ADJOURNMENT 
Cyndy Maxwell motioned and Dan Lowe seconded for adjournment. Board approved and meeting was 
adjourned at 7:26 pm. 



Angela Zimmer, Deputy City Clerk 

Subject: FW: Hardin Active ALICE Training 

Attachments: ALICE Training Course Schedule.pdf; ACI Host flyer - Hardin Public Schools.pdf; 4 Hour 

Session Public Flyer -Hardin School District 17.pdf 

From: Tobin Novasio <tobin.novasio@hardin.k12.mt.us> 

Sent: Tuesday, September 3, 2024 9:14 AM 

Subject: Hardin Active ALICE Training 

Hardin Schools will host ALICE Active Shooter training on October 16-18. 

The October 16th training will be from 4:00-8:00 PM and is geared toward the general public. 

The two day training on the 17th and 18th is geared towards those who are interested in becoming an ALICE Trainer for 
your organizations. 

Everyone is invited. Please forward on to anyone you think might be interested! 

You can Register Here. 

Let me know if you have any questions, 

Tobin 

Tobin Novasio 
Superintendent 
Hardin School Districts 17H & 1 

Our Mission: In partnership with parents and community we will provide equal opportunities for students to 
acquire the knowledge and skills that foster responsible choices. The school community will nurture, challenge, 
and guide students towards achieving their maximum potential. 

"The load is heavy and the road is long, and we've only begun to fight. We just can't give in, we can't 
just give up. We must go boldly into the darkness and be the light." - BJ Barham 



Who should attend? 

This course is designed for 
the everyday individual 

If you go to the grocery 
store, attend a community 
gathering or work outside 
your home, these ALICE 
strategies can be applied to 
you 

Objectives and Outcomes: 

• Recognize Understand 
the need for and 
effectiveness of options-
based response strategies in 
the unlikely event of an 
active shooter 

• Identify: Learn how ALICE 
strategies can be 
implemented in specific 
environments. 

• Practice: Engage in 
hands-on activities to apply 
ALICE strategies in 
demonstrations. 

ALICE a solution of e es. 
• •••  • • Navigate3 • . •. 

ALICE Strategies 4-Hou 
Session 

This 4-Hour training is designed to teach participants the 
skills and strategies to increase survivability during the gap 
between the time a violent event occurs, and law 
enforcement arrives. 

When: October 16th, 2024 
4:00 PM — 8:00 PM 

Who: Hardin School District 17 

Where: Hardin Middle School (Auditorium) 
611 W. 5th St., Hardin, MT 59034 

Registration: https://cvent.me/0Qb1LB?Refld=social 

www.alicetraining.com I 330-661-0106 



TRAINING 
INCLUDES: 

Background: Statistics 
and information about 
active shooter situations 
and why ALICE Training is 
effective 

ALICE Concept: Detailed 
overview of ALICE Training 
and the liability of proactive 
vs passive response 
strategies 

Physical Drill: Experience 
livelscenano drills that 
compare a static vs active 
ALICE response 

Effective Training: 
Strategies and materials to 
become an effective ALICE 
instructor in your 
organization 

ALICE ActiveShooter 
esp n e Trining 

Join us for ALICE Certified Instructor Training hosted by 
Hardin Public Schools! 

This 2-Day Instructor training course is designed to teach 
participants the skills and strategies to increase survivability 
during the gap between the time a violent event occurs, and 
law enforcement arrives. Upon successful completion of this 
course, you will be a Certified ALICE Instructor and will have 
the knowledge and resources to train others in your 
community. 

When: October 17th and 18th, 2024 

8am — 5pm 

Where: Hardin Middle School 
611 W. 5th Street 
Hardin, MT 59034 

Register: https://cvent.me/5Qq9Ma?Refld=social 

www.alicetraining.com I 330-661-0106 



ALICE a solution of 06.. 
• Navigate 360 • . es • • 

Day 1: 

8:00am - 9:00: Introduction to Instructor and History of ALICE 
9:15am - 11:30: Trauma informed training and ALICE Program review 

11:30am - 12:30: Lunch Break 
12:30pm - 2:30: Scenarios 
2:45pm - 4:30: Group Projects 
4:30 pm - 5:00: Review of Day and overview of Day 2 

Day 2: 

8:00am - 8:30: Review of Day one 
8:30am - 11:30: Teachback Sessions 1 & 2 
11:30am - 12:30: Lunch Break 
12:30pm - 2:30: Teachback Session 3 
2:30pm - 3:00: Demonstrations 
3:00pm - 3:30: Drills & Critical Thinking Drill Cards 
3:30pm - 4:30: Instructor Resources 



0 0  NEWSLINE 
Montana Department of Transportation 

Welcome (Back) to 
MDT, Director 
Dorrington! 

Chris Dorrington 
now serves as 

the Director of the 
Montana Department of 
Transportation (MDT), 
appointed by Governor 
Gianforte in June 2024. 
To fulfill MDT's mission, 
Director Dorrington is 
focused on organizational 
excellence, clear and 
consistent 
communication, and 
accountability. He is 
actively advancing 
efficiencies and 
effectiveness of MDT 
programs while honoring 
our most valuable assets — our people. 

In July 2022 Governor Gianforte also appointed 
Director Dorrington as the Chair of the Housing Task 
Force, with an objective of quickly researching and 
then proposing improvements that both the Montana 
Legislature, Executive branch and locals could 
implement to address Montana's housing crisis. Prior 
to his current role as MDT Director, he led the 
Department of Environmental Quality (DEQ) as 
Director for 3.5 years, and the Air, Energy, and Mining 
Division at DEQ for 4.5 years prior. He started his 
state career at MDT, working for 10.5 years in the 
Planning Division. In total, Director Dorrington has 
nearly 19 years in leadership with the state and six in 
private industry. He earned his Bachelor's of Science 
in mechanical engineering from Gonzaga University, 
and a master's degree in transportation policy, 
operations and logistics from George Mason 
University. 

Please join us in welcoming Chris Dorrington 
back to MDT! 

Chris Dorrington, MDT 
Director 

FaH 2024 

Rail Crossing Safety in Montana 

On 
July 1, 

BNSF 
Railway Company 
(BNSF) 
announced awards 
to honor four state 
departments of 
transportation 9 
(DOTs) for their 
dedication to 
improving grade 
crossing safety in 
their respective 
statewide 
communities. 
Montana, along 
with Idaho, New 
Mexico and 
Wyoming, was 
recognized with an 
inaugural 
"Tracking to Zero" award for averaging less than one grade crossing incident per one 
million BNSF train miles traveled in the state (based on 2023 data reported to the 
Federal Railroad Administration (FRA)). 

MDT's efforts, which merited the award, include collaborating with BNSF Railway 
and local governments to identify and address grade crossing improvements, 
including the identification, analyzation, and implementation of grade crossing safety 
projects across the state. Safety improvements range from crossing signing projects, 
grade crossing signal installations, upgrades to existing signals, and the elimination of 
railroad crossings through grade separations. All of these efforts have collectively 
enhanced the overall safety and efficiency of Montana's extensive rail system. 

MDT also works with Operation Lifesaver to educate people on how to be safe 
around highway-rail crossings and railroad tracks. One such annual effort is See 
Tracks, Think Train® Week (formerly known as Rail Safety Week), which takes place 
September 23-29, 2024. This national safety week is a collaborative effort between 
Operation Lifesaver, Inc. and various rail safety partners across the US, Canada and 
Mexico. Whether during See Tracks, Think Train® Week or the rest of the year, MDT 
would like to encourage all Montanans to join in the conversation and do their part to 
always practice safe, legal behavior around railroad tracks and crossings. 

MDT is committed to the goal of Vision Zero — zero deaths and zero serious 
injuries on Montana roadways. Working with partners like BNSF and Operation 
Lifesaver to address rail crossing safety is an important part of reaching that goal. 
Learn more about railroad crossings in Montana and MDT's work with Operation 
Lifesaver here: https://www.mdtmtgovivisionzerofroads/railroad-crossinq.aspx.

Pictured from left to right: Calvin Cook (MDT Crossing Inventory 
Specialist), May Ann Monaldi (BNSF), John Althof (MDT Rail-Highway 
Safety Manager), Matt Jones (BNSF), and Chris Dorrington (MDT 
Director) 

Federal Surface Transportation Program Status 
Every year, the total amount of federal funding that can be legally obligated for expenditure by the federal-aid highway 

program is limited by a provision in the annual appropriations bill for the US Department of Transportation (USDOT). 
This appropriations bill sets a limit on the total dollar amount of aggregate federal-aid highways contract authority that can 
be obligated. Of the total obligation limitation, an initial amount is reserved each year for allocated (non-formula) Federal 
Highway Administration (FHWA) programs. At the end of every July, FHWA determines how much obligation limitation they 
won't be able to use by September 30, and asks states how much additional funding they could obligate by September 30, 
of the same calendar year. This additional funding that is made available to states is known as August Redistribution, and 
has been a part of the federal obligation limitation process since the 1980s. For the first 30+ years, the amounts were 

relatively small, but over the last few years, the amount of August Redistribution has grown considerably based on the growth in slow-spending 
non-formula programs, such as discretionary grants. The challenges for state DOTs with August Redistribution are not knowing the amount of 
funds available, having projects available for these funds, and getting these funds obligated in 30 days. This 30-day window to obligate these 
funds can force state DOTs away from meeting their strategic capital investment goals. 



NEWSLINE SUBSCRIPTION 
UPDATES 

Did you know? The Newsline is 
I available by both mail (print) and email 

I 
▪ (electronically). Please contact Lauren Eichenfels, 

Newsline Editor, to add or update your subscription 
preferences. 

> By email: leichenfels@mt.gov 

> By phone*: 406-444-7614 

s
VISION ZERO 0AVE THE DATES 

CTOBER 16 & 17 

2024 Annual Transportation Safety Meeting 

Delta Colonial Hotel 
2301 Colonial Drive, Helena, Montana 

I *Please leave a voicemail with your full name, phone i  . This event brings together federal, state, tribal, and local safety partners 
• number and mailing address for print subscriptions, I Ito share implementation of Montana's Comprehensive Highway Safety 
1 OR your name, phone number and the best time of day 

I 

Plan (CHSP) emphasis areas, assess progress in reducing roadway 
I to reach you to create or update your subscription.  I fatalities and serious injuries, and explore new opportunities to enhance 

traffic safety awareness. 

I Emphasis Areas: I Moving? Change of address? Please let us 
I know! We are happy to update your current mailing 

address if you wish to continue receiving the 
Newsline. 

I 
NOTE: Due to State costs associated with printing and 
mailing, all returned copies of the Newsline will be 

▪ removed from future mailings to that address and/or 
I contact. New subscriptions may be requested at any 

time by contacting the Newsline Editor (see options 
I above). We thank you in advance for your help in 

reducing waste and your assistance in providing 
I updates to your subscription information as they 

occur. 
16.  

Roadway Departures & Intersection-Related Crashes 

Impaired Driving Crashes 

Unrestrained Vehicle Occupants 

Emergency Response Post-Crash Care 

I " The agenda is under development and will be posted at 
www.mdt.mt.qovIvisionzero/planslchsp-meetinas.shtml.

I I For additional information, please contact Pam Langve-Davis at 
406-444-7646 or plangvedavis@mt.gov. 

Montana Essential Freight & Rail Loan 
Program (MEFRL) 

MDT will be soliciting for freight rail loan applications through 
the MEFRL Program beginning this September. For more 
information, go to https://www. rndt.mf.00v/business/orants-
rail.aspx. 

MEFRL is a small revolving loan program to help preserve and 
enhance freight railroad service on branch lines in Montana. 

Transportation Alternatives (TA) 
Program 

Nearly all the 33 applications that were awarded TA funding in 
2023 are now in preliminary project development. Many of these 
projects are being developed by local agencies while MDT is 
also developing some of the projects. In January 2025, MDT will 
release the Call for Applications and $16 million will be available. 
There will continue to be two categories: Capital Improvement 
and Pavement Preservation. The five Metropolitan Planning 
Organization (MPO) areas will administer their own Call for 
Application and selection process. Visit the TA website to learn 
more: https://www.mdt.mt.qovimdt/ta-application.aspx.

Contact Dave Holien, TA Program Manager, at 406-444-6118 or 
dholien@mtgov with any questions. 

Follow Us: 
@montanadot @mtdot You 

New Buses and Vans to 
Support Public Transit 

S ince May, MDT Transit Section staff have been hard at work, 
taking delivery of 67 new buses and vans for open- and closed-

door transportation services throughout Montana. MDT provided pass-
through federal transit funds with procurement services to make this 
happen. These vehicles are intended to replace existing fleet vehicles 
that have reached expiration and expand transportation services 
statewide. Removing expired vehicles from service supports MDT's value 
of providing safe and reliable service, while also supporting the 
department's strategic goal to maintain a good state of repair. The MDT 
Transit Section thanks Montana's transit providers and is pleased to 
expect additional new vehicles before the end of 2024. For more 
information, contact Adam Kraft, Transit Section Supervisor, at 406-444-
6120 or akraft@mt.gov. 

En Montana Department 
/montanadot of Transportation 

2 



MDT Advances 
Stormwater Infrastructure 
Mapping to Comply with 
MS4 Permit 

I n a concerted effort to meet the requirements of the 
Municipal Separate Storm Sewer System (MS4) permit, 

the MDT has made significant strides in updating stormwater 
infrastructure mapping across all MS4 areas over the past few 
years. This initiative, crucial for effective stormwater 
management, was supported extensively by data provided by 
local GIS teams, whose contributions have been invaluable to 
MDT's progress. 

To ensure uniformity in the mapping process, MDT 
developed a standardized procedure for inventorying outfalls 
under its jurisdiction. To provide transparency and clarity, MDT 
has released its Outfall Inventory Guidance document, detailing 
the mapping process. 

MDT also met with the Montana Department of 
Environmental Quality (DEQ) and reviewed MDT's guidance. 
DEQ had no concerns with the approach, encouraging 
coordination among the MS4 entities. 

MDT acknowledges that there may be discrepancies in 
outfall responsibilities within each MS4 area. To address these 
potential issues, the department is organizing virtual and in-
person meetings at various locations to present an overview of 
the mapping process and to gather feedback on any concerns 
regarding MDT's approach. This documentation will facilitate 
future discussions and coordination, ensuring that all parties can 
reach an agreement on maintenance responsibilities and 
reconcile any data discrepancies. These meetings began in July 
and will continue through October 2024. 

MDT remains committed to effective stormwater 
management and appreciates the ongoing cooperation and 
support from all MS4 stakeholders in this critical endeavor. As 
part of the requirements of the program, a 30-day public 
comment period was advertised and held August 4 through 
September 4 to solicit comments on MDT's annual Stormwater 
Management Program (SWMP) update. Public and stakeholder 
involvement in annual plan updates is intended to improve the 
function of this program and further protect water quality in 
Montana. MDT is addressing comments received and plans to 
issue a Final SWMP in the near future. In the meantime, the 
June 2024 Revised Draft SWMP is available online as the most 
current version: www.mdt.mt.qov/pubinvolvelstormwatert 

Although the official public comment period for this update 
has ended, MDT encourages and accepts comments on a 
continuous basis. If you have areas of concern regarding storm 
water discharges from MDT's transportation infrastructure and/or 
suggestions to improve other areas of the program listed above, 
please complete the MDT Storm Water Management Feedback 
Form online https://mtaccessgov.com/mdt/Forms/Pactelmdt-
tp/storm-water-manaqement-feedback/0 or email comments 
to the following address, mdtms4datamanager@mt.gov. 

Alternatively, comments can be mailed to the following 
physical address: 

Montana Department of Transportation 
Environmental Services Bureau 

Attention: Tom Gocksch, P.E., Environmental Engineering 
Section Supervisor 

2701 Prospect 
PO Box 201001 

Helena, MT 59620-1001 
MDT's intent is to improve program implementation and 

public comments that are received will be considered in this 
SWMP version or during the next annual update in 2025. 

MDT's Cpl. Adam Romkema 
Honored with Medal of Valor 

orporal (Cpl.) Adam 
Romkema of MDT's Motor 

Carrier Services (MCS) Division 
was honored this summer with the 
Medal of Valor for extraordinary 
courage to protect or preserve 
human life. Presented by the 
Montana Federation of Public 
Employees (MFPE), the Medal of 
Valor recognizes Cpl. Romkema's 
actions when he was first on the 
scene of a multi-vehicle crash 
during a blizzard near Twin Bridges 
in February 2023. Thanks to his 
quick action and mass casualty 
incident training received through 
the Montana Army Guard, Cpl. 
Romkema was able to secure the 
scene (despite sub-zero 
temperatures), organize a safe shelter through a nearby church, and 
direct local emergency responders until the Madison County Sheriff and 
Montana Highway Patrol could arrive. MCS officers are rarely first to 
respond to a crash, as this is not part of their regular duties, but Cpl. 
Romkema's fast response and training played a critical role in preserving 
life and reducing the severity of the outcome of the crash. 

Congratulations to Cpl. Romkema for this well-deserved honor! 
Thank you for your continued service and commitment to the safety of 
Montana's traveling public. 

Cpl. Adam Romkema (left) being 
presented with Medal of Valor by MFPE 
President, Amanda Curtis (right). 

Summer Intern Program 

MDT recently celebrated the 
success of another summer 

internship program. Interns that 
participated in 2024 were able to learn 
firsthand about their chosen career area 
of the department, ranging from 
research to engineering. This program 
starts in May and runs through mid-
August, and typically expects a 40-hour 
work week, Monday-Friday. Internships 
are paid and available in a number of 
areas/divisions at MDT. Specific 
locations and roles vary annually, 
depending on department needs and 
upcoming projects. To be eligible to 
participate, students must: 

• be enrolled in a college, university, 
or technical school; or be within 6 
months of graduation date; 

• have completed at least 60 
academic credits* (or 30 credits if 
enrolled in technical school); and 

• be in good academic standing. 
*Interns with less than 60 credit hours 
may be considered. 

Interested in being an intern at 
MDT? Check out MDT's Current 
Openings (www.mcit.mt.qov/jobs/ 
current-openinqs.aspx) for future 
postings and more information, or 
contact MDT's Recruiter, Angela Murolo 
at amurolo@mt.gov. At MDT, you'll find 
more than just a job. You'll find a career! 

Visit MDT's YouTube channel to 
meet the talented interns from this year's summer program, and hear about 
their experiences at MDT: https://www.voutube.com/user/MontanaDOT.

3 



r'l akc—i Montana Child Passenger Safety Program 
VISION ZERO T he Montana Child Passenger Safety (CPS) team is going to be busy promoting awareness around 

141/4 1,  I September 
fo1r5c-h2i1Id f 0a2s4sewin9tehrschtehicskfaulpl , eevsepnetcsiahlIzIdduarcinrogsCs CPS Week. This hTrhoiusgyheoaurt, tChePSweWeekeaknwd will ntaskaetuplradcaey,

September 21st (National Seat Check Saturday). 
Montana will also be holding one final CPS Technician Training in Missoula during CPS Week. This training will take place September 

17-20, 2024, with the check-up event being conducted on Friday, September 20, at the Missoula Rural Fire District. Montana currently has 15 
active CPS instructors, 251 CPS technicians and 33 permanent CPS inspection stations to provide education and assistance on appropriate 
restraints and proper use and installation for children in vehicles. 

For more information, contact Kevin Dusko, State Highway Traffic Safety Section Supervisor, at 406-444-7411 or kedusko@mtgov. You 
can also visit MDT's CPS Events webpage: https://www.mdt.mt.gov/visionzero/people/cps-events.asox.

MDT's Safety Related 
Research Nationally 
Recognized for "High 
Value" 

very year, the American Association of State 
Highway and Transportation Officials (AASHTO), 

through the Research Advisory Committee (RAC), select 
"High Value Research" projects submitted by each state 
DOT. Montana put forward its "Effectiveness of Highway 
Safety Public Education at Montana Motor Vehicle 
Registration Stations by Streaming a Variety of Safety 
Content" as its 2024 High Value Research nominee. MDT 
was nationally recognized with an award for this nomination 
in a supplemental topic area, "Safety, Security and 
Emergencies," and has been invited to present a poster on 
the project at the annual Transportation Research Board 
(TRB) 2025 Annual Meeting in Washington, D.C. 

The research project tested a method for conducting 
public education by showing traffic safety video loops/ 
sequences to the public at select Motor Vehicle Divisions 
(MVDs) and County Treasurer Offices (CT0s) in Montana. 
Strategically placed monitors showed educational content to 
the public that often has waiting times of five minutes or 
longer. This is enough time for people to give their attention 
to a video screen playing safety messages. The video loop 
showed a combination of short video clips, facts, and trivia. 
The video clips included safe driving habits, like buckling seat 
belts and not driving impaired, and proven innovative road 
safety countermeasures such as roundabouts and rumble 
strips. 

Surveys were conducted after people had viewed the 
content. Respondents did not report a change in behavior, 
but reported that the videos had an impact. Some 
respondents stated they would be safer drivers while others 
stated they would share the information seen with others. 
These are important steps in the process of changing beliefs 
which can lead to changing behaviors and growing a positive 
safety culture. Changing beliefs can take years, and growing 
a positive traffic safety culture is a process, not a single 
intervention. The researchers believe that the benefits from 
this approach (showing safety content), along with other 
strategies overtime, will benefit a positive traffic safety 
culture and change beliefs about safe driving habits. 

The research demonstrated that safety content is 
relatively simple and low-cost, with minimal disruptions to 
local office staff. The content also reaches broad 
demographics. 

Learn more about this research project at https:// 
mdt.mt.dov/research/proiects/safetv/safetyvideos.aspx. 

Tribal Youth in Montana Gain 
Hands-On Driver Education 
through GHSA Grant 

Thanks to a competitive grant from the Governors Highway Safety 
I Association (GHSA) and Ford Motor Company Fund, 24 teens 

representing all seven land-based tribes in Montana have completed the 
Montana Drive program in Lewistown. This was the first time many of 
these teens received hands-on driving instruction. 

The Montana Department of Transportation (MDT) pursued the grant 
because only two tribes in Montana offer driver's education. State law 
requires training be provided by a certified teacher and many tribal 
communities do not have the resources. Additionally, not all communities 
within reservation boundaries have traffic code related to education for 
novice drivers or driver's licensing requirements. This means many young 
Native American drivers lack access to any formal training, yet driving 
remains a transportation necessity in rural areas 

"This grant supports historic opportunities for Montana's Tribal 
communities related to traffic safety," said MDT Director Christopher 
Dorrington. "Driver's education teaches these youth safe operation behind 
the wheel and plays a critical role in keeping our at-risk, vulnerable 
population from harm." 

In addition to the Montana Drive program offered through the Office of 
Public Instruction this grant funded scholarships for Tribal teachers to 
become certified driver's education instructors through MSU-Northern. 
Five scholarships were provided with all expenses paid for new instructors 
in Tribal communities. Confederated Salish & Kootenai, Fort Belknap, and 

Northern Cheyenne are 
taking part in the training. 

Since 2006, MDT has 
implemented Montana's 
Safe on All Roads 
(SOAR) program for tribal 
traffic safety. Through this 
program, each tribal 
community employs their 
own coordinator with 
funding through MDT's 
highway traffic safety 
program to educate 
community members on 
traffic safety 
issues. These 
coordinators were 
instrumental in ensuring 
this grant was a success. 

For more information on 
the SOAR program, 
please contact Sheila 
Cozzie at 406-444-7301 
or scozzie@mtgov. 

Teen graduates pose with their completion certificates from the Montana Drive 
4 program in Lewistown. 



Montana Traffic Safety Dates 

August 14, 2024-September 2, 2024* 

Labor Day Drive Sober or Get Pulled Over Law Enforcement 
Impaired Driving Mobilization (2024 STEP) 

Note: There were 20 agencies that participated in the Labor 
Day mobilization for FFY2023 . For more information, contact 
Spencer Harris, Law Enforcement Liaison at 406-444-0856 or 
sharris@mt.gov. 

September 15-21, 2024 

Child Passenger Safety Week (National Seat Check Saturday 
is September 21, 2024) 

September 23-29, 2024 

See Tracks, Think Train® Week (Operation Lifesaver) 

October 1-31, 2024 

National Pedestrian Safety Month (National Walk & Roll to 
School Day is October 9, 2024: https://walkbiketoschooLorg)

October 16-17, 2024 (Seepage 2 for more info) 

Annual Transportation Safety Meeting (CHSP) 

October 20-26, 2024 

National Teen Driver Safety Week 

October 21-25, 2024 

National School Bus Safety Week 

October 31, 2024 

Halloween Holiday—Drive Sober, Watch for Pedestrians! 

November 18-22, 2024 

Crash Responder Safety Week (CRSW) 

November 23-27, 2024 

Thanksgiving & Holiday Travel—Buckle Up & Drive Sober 

December 11, 2024—January 1, 2025" 

Winter-Holiday Drive Sober Enforcement 

*Selective Traffic Enforcement Program (STEP) 
Mobilization Periods 

October is National 
Pedestrian Safety 

Month 

I n 2020, the National 
Highway Traffic Safety 

Administration (NHTSA) launched 
National Pedestrian Safety Month 
in October (httos:// 
www.nhtsa.00vievents/national-
pedestrian-safely-month-
kickoff), aiming to draw attention 
to pedestrian safety. This October 
marks the fifth annual observance 
of this essential campaign, reminding us that every day, "we 
are all pedestrians." 

This month, we encourage Montanans to engage with the 
latest updates and resources on pedestrian safety. Keep an 
eye on MDT's website and social media for informative content 
and practical safety tips designed to keep pedestrians safe. Fo 
ongoing guidance and resources on nonmotorized travel, visit 
www.indtmtmovItravinfo/bikeoed/. Let's make our 
community a safer place for everyone, one step at a time. 

Back to School: Tips to 
Ensure Safe Travel for 
Montana's Students 

1 
t's that time of year again—school's back in session for 2024-2025, 
and Montana's kids are striding and pedaling their way to class! As 

we dive into the new school year, let's keep safety front and center. 

Drivers, here's your back-to-school checklist: 

> Put the phone away: Focus on the road, not your screen. 

> Look before you back up: Check driveways and alleyways for young 
walkers and bikers particularly in the morning and afternoon especially 
as daylight hours decrease. 

• Be vigilant in school zones: Watch for crossing guards and school 
routes. 

> Slow down: Be extra cautious around corners and bus stops. 

> Be aware of school bus laws: Yellow flashing lights indicate children 
are preparing to load or unload and drivers should be prepared to stop. 
Red flashing lights indicate children are loading or unloading and 
motorists MUST stop at least 30 feet from the school bus and wait until 
red lights are no longer flashing. 

Kids, here's your safety mantra: 

> Stay alert: Keep your ears and eyes open—no distractions. 

> Make eye contact with drivers: Ensure they see you before crossing. 

> Use crosswalks and intersections: Always choose safe crossing 
points. 

Remember, children's vision and perception aren't the same as adults', 
so they may not always see or judge vehicles as we do. Let's all do our 
part—drivers and pedestrians alike—to keep our roads safe. 

Parents and guardians, now's the perfect time to brush up on 
pedestrian and bike safety with your kids. Find handy resources and tips 
online at www.mdt.mt.dovitravinfo/bikeped/, or connect with MDT's 
Bicycle and Pedestrian Coordinator at 406-444-9273 or 
MDTBikePed@mt.gov. Let's kick off the school year with safety in full swing! 

- Safe Driving Around School Buses 
MONTANA 

tru'r=gi 

You should allow a minimum of 30 feet between your vehicle and a school 
791, bus making a passenger stop. But what might 30 feet look like? 

5 



MDT Continues to Support 
Montana Infrastructure 
Improvements with Federal, 
State Funding 
Opportunities 

Due to the number of discretionary grant opportunities 
currently provided under the Infrastructure Investment and 

Jobs Act (IIJA), MDT created the Discretionary Funding and Analysis 
Section (DFAS) within the Rail, Transit and Planning Division in April 
2023. Also known as the Grants team, DFAS staff research potential 
grant projects, develop and submit grant applications, and oversee 
grant management activities for grants awarded and/or transferred to 
MDT. 

Since fiscal year (FY) 2022, MDT has been awarded over $66 
million in discretionary funding for several projects thanks to the hard 
work of the DFAS staff. These projects include the I 90 Missoula to 
Garrison Wildlife Crossing Feasibility Study (FY 2023 Wildlife 
Crossing Pilot Program (WCPP) grant award) and Mineral County I 
90 Improvements Project (FY 2024 Multimodal Project Discretionary 
Grant (MPDG) Program awards). Read more about the FY 2023 
WCPP grant award in the December 2023 Newsline: https:// 
www.mdt.mt.dov/publications/docs/newsletters/newsline/2023/ 
newdec23.pdf. 

MDT has also supported a number of applications for 
discretionary funding submitted by local and tribal governments 
through letters of support, funding match sources, etc. Out of these 
local or tribal applications that were selected for discretionary funding 
awards, several have been subsequently transferred to MDT due to 
the department's expertise in working with the Federal Highway 
Administration (FHWA) and its Financial Management Information 
System (FMIS). Together, these applications represent strong 
partnerships between MDT and Montana's local and tribal 
government entities, and the awarded funding will support statewide 
transportation projects to keep Montana moving forward. Learn more 
about discretionary grant programs, available support, and MDT 
applications and support to-date here: 
https://www.mdt.mt.govIbusiness/discretionatyqrants/.

MDT has also been involved in the application and distribution 
processes for several new state funding sources that were signed 
into law during the 2023 legislative session. Specifically, the passage 
of Senate Bill 536, House Bill (HB) 267, and HB 76 made new state 
funding resources available to support this historic investment in 
Montana's roads and bridges. Learn more about state funding for 
local infrastructure here: 
https://www.mdt.mt.dov/business/localsupport/state-
fundind.aspx. 

DFAS continues to research and apply for discretionary planning 
and construction grants throughout the year, as well as assist local 
and tribal governments as they apply for grants to help improve 
Montana's roadways and bridges. For more information, contact 
DFAS supervisor Nick Hill at nihill@mt.gov. 

Overhead view of traffic on 190 bridge near Alberton, Mont. 

6 

MDT Awards Traffic Safety Grants to 
Support Vision Zero 

National Highway Traffic Safety Administration (NHTSA) 
Grants 

MDT awarded almost $3.8 million in federal grant monies from 
NHTSA for Federal Fiscal Year (FFY) 2025. The grants will address 
impaired driving, occupant protection and child passenger safety. 
The emphasis of this grant program is to improve traffic safety 
through education, enforcement and emergency medical services 
training. Law enforcement agencies are funded for increased 
patrols to concentrate on seat belt, speeding and impaired driving 
laws. Grants for DUI Courts, a Traffic Safety Resource Prosecutor, 
a Traffic Safety Resource Training Officer, and the 24/7 Program 
address impaired driving. Traffic safety education programs 
continue with the Native American Safe On All Roads (SOAR), 
Buckle Up Montana coalitions, and the Teen Peer to Peer Traffic 
Safety programs. The NHTSA grant opportunity will open January 
1, 2025, and close March 1, 2025, for FFY26 funds. Contact Kevin 
Dusko at 406-444-7411 or kedusko@mtgov for more information. 

https://www.mdt.mt.aovivisionzerolgrants/ 

Emergency Medical Services (EMS) Grant Program 

Nearly $1 million in grant funds is awarded annually through the 
state funded EMS Grant program. The grants are provided to 
agencies staffed by mostly volunteers, Medicare-level billing 
providers for ambulances, emergency vehicles, training, equipment, 
communication, or patient care. The program is awarded through a 
competitive grant process that opens on May 1, and closes June 
30, annually. For State Fiscal Year (SFY) 2025, approximately $1 
million in funding will be awarded to EMS providers. Contact 
Spencer Harris at 406-444-0856 or shards@mt.gov for more 
information. 

https://www.mdt.mt.dov/business/drants-ems.aspx

Utility Permits: Overview 
and Process 

MDT uses utility permits to track and manage the installation 
or modification of utility infrastructure within the highway 

right-of-way. A utility permit is required prior to occupancy of the 
highway right-of-way, and may be needed when there are new 
installations of utilities, major modifications of existing utilities, or any 
change in type, function, or physical location of a facility. Common 
utility permits applied for include installation of fiber optics, extension 
of water mains, light, power in any form, and regulated 
telecommunications service. MDT utilizes the Utilities Permitting 
Administration System (UPAS) to track and manage all utility permits 
for work within the right-of-way. More information on the UPAS 
system and how to submit a utility permit can be found on the UPAS 
webpage: https://www.mdt.mt.gov/upast 

Most utilities are permitted with a standard utility permit. Utilities 
proposed for installation longitudinally in the interstate right of way 
require an Interstate Utility permit. State law (MCA 60-4-601) 
authorizes MDT to grant a right-of-way use agreement for the use of 
longitudinal right-of-way along Montana's Interstate highways for 
eligible projects. Eligible Interstate projects include pipeline, fiber 
optic or other communications-type cables, wireless facility, 
associated infrastructure, and dedicated power sources. 

MDT District Utility Agents (DUA) manage all utility permits 
submitted through UPAS and nominate projects to the Systems 
Impact Action Process (SIAP) when one or more review services are 
needed from MDT Headquarters staff. Once sent to Systems Impact, 
a review will be coordinated for the permit with the appropriate 
sections of MDT and other agencies. SIAP staff will also coordinate 
any additional documentation needed, such as a bond or a three-
party agreement. For more information on the SIAP process, please 
visit our webpage: https://www.mdt.mt.dov/business/siap.aspx.



A Monument to a Failed Dream: The Snowden Bridge 
By Jon Axline, MDT Historian 

I get more questions about the Snowden Bridge than any other 
bridge in the state. It certainly is photogenic, with its lift towers 

rising over a hundred feet above the Missouri River in northeastern 
Montana. You can see the towers from quite a distance. Its also unique 
among bridges in Montana, as the only vertical lift structure in the state. 
Designed by famed bridge engineer J. A. L. Waddell, the Snowden 
Bridge was an engineering marvel in its day, a superstar built during the 
height of the golden age of steel truss bridge construction in Montana 
between 1887 and 1921. Until the interstate highway era, the 1,159-foot 
Snowden Bridge was the among the state's most massive steel bridges 
and, for a short time, the longest vertical lift span in the world. Today, it 
has the distinction of being, perhaps, the most photographed bridge in 
Montana. 

The Snowden Bridge is a monument to a failed dream — the Great 
Northern Railway's plan to construct the Montana Eastern Railway from 
Lewistown, Montana, to New Rockford, North Dakota. During the 1910 
10 1918 Homestead Boom, the Great Northern and its subsidiaries 
expanded into the rural areas of eastern Montana and western North 
Dakota with the intent to serve the homesteaders and to protect the 
railroad's interests in the area by providing a second, shorter main line 
west. The Great Northern's plans for the railroad didn't go as planned. 
Instead of the 579 miles the company's executives planned, the railroad 
only ran 108 miles between Watford, North Dakota and Richey, 
Montana with a 24-mile branch north from Fairview to the Snowden 
junction on the main line. The railroad required two major bridges: one 
over the Yellowstone River and another spanning the Missouri River. 
The railroad built both bridges at the same time. Because the federal 
government classified both rivers as navigable, the railroad needed to 
make provisions that allowed river traffic to pass under the structures. 

In September 1912, the railroad awarded a contract to the Kansas 
City, Missouri-based Union Bridge and Construction to build both 
bridges. Within a few weeks of the awarding of the contract, a shanty 
town sprang up on the north side of the Missouri River for the Snowden 
bridge. Many of the work crew members were African Americans from 
Missouri or nearby Fort Buford. Tragically, in April 1913, a dispute over 
a shack at the construction camp led to the fatal shooting of the 
Sheridan County sheriff and a deputy by one of the workers. A mob 
later stormed the Mondak city jail and hanged the perpetrator. 

Completed in December 1913, the four-span bridge's design is 
unpretentious. It consists simply of four through truss spans. Two steel 
towers support the 296-foot vertical lift span. Engineer Waddell 
designed the bridge so that concrete counterweights in each tower 
raised and lowered the span, acting much as sash weights do in old 
double-hung windows. A three-cylinder, kerosene-fueled engine in the 
structure on top of the lift span controlled the counterweights to raise 
and lower the span. Shipping on the Missouri River in Montana did not 
warrant the raising of the lift span very often. But when it did happen, it 
took about 30 minutes to raise the span high enough to allow boat 
passage under the structure during normal water levels. If the lift engine 
failed, workers could raise the span by hand using a capstan similar to 
that found on sea-going vessels. In those instances, the span could be 
raised in several hours. The bridge's lift span is comprised of 571 tons 
of structural steel. 

In 1916, the Great Northern scrapped its plans to complete the 
Montana Eastern Railway, and the Snowden Bridge functioned as part 
of a branch line between Sidney and the Great Northern's main line 
Snowden station. When completed, the bridge was the only river 
crossing between Fort Benton, Montana, and Bismarck, North Dakota. 
In 1925, the Great Northern Railway, planked the bridge's deck for 
venicular traffic and charged motorists tolls to use the bridge. For most 
of the bridge's history, train and vehicular traffic shared the use of the 
structure. It was the only toll bridge in Montana for 30 years, from 1925 
to 1955. Toll keepers stationed at each end of the bridge collected 75 
cents for an automobile and driver to cross the bridge; it was 15 cents 

for each additional passenger. A motorist had to pay attention, though, 
as trains still used the bridge. After 1955, the Great Northern installed 
crossing gates and stop lights at each end of the bridge to prevent 
incidents between vehicles and trains. In 1981, the Montana Highway 
Department reported that accidents on the bridge were rare because 
"the structure is so dangerous that it is safe. That is, drivers are more 
careful than they would normally be when crossing the bridge." 

The Snowden Bridge's lift span was rarely used. During the 
construction of Fort Peck Dam in the 1930s, loaded barges traveled 
under the bridge, but the railroad seldom undertook the cumbersome 
task of raising the span to give them clearance. Instead, barges took on 
water, lowering their height, in order to pass under the bridge. In all, the 
span was not raised more than 16 times, the last being in 1935. The 
Great Northern retired the lift machinery and secured the lift span in 
1943. Until the 1990s, the lift house with its equipment remained intact 
atop the lift span. 

The Great Northern and local residents suffered a contentious 
relationship over the bridge for decades. While locals appreciated the 
bridge's availability for motor traffic, tolls were the issue. The toll rates 
didn't change for 30 years, but they were seen as a burden to drivers 
who could ill afford them, especially during the Great Depression. Area 
chambers of commerce, commercial clubs, and civic groups constantly 
lobbied the railroad to abolish the tolls with no effect. In 1949, the state 
legislature passed a bill that designated all toll bridges in Montana as 
free, and allowed the Montana Highway Commission to expend money 
on improvements and maintenance on them. Since the bridge was the 
only toll structure in the state and the bill was introduced in the 
legislature by a Richland County representative, the bill was clearly 
aimed at the Snowden Bridge. The Montana Supreme Court later ruled 
the law unconstitutional because public money could not be spent on a 
privately-owned bridge. The railroad finally gave into public pressure in 
1955, and stopped charging tolls to use the bridge. 

The railroad and motor vehicles shared use of the bridge until 
1985, when the Montana and North Dakota highway departments 
opened a new bridge across the Missouri River a few miles downstream 
of the Snowden Bridge. The Snowden Bridge stands today as a 
monument to a time of tremendous railroad expansion in Montana and 
as a technological innovation that was, for a while at least, the longest 
vertical lift span in the world. Most importantly, Snowden Bridge is firmly 
entrenched in local lore. 

The Snowden Bridge, Montana's only vertical lift structure in the state. 

7 



Alternative accessible formats of this document will be provided on request. Persons who need an alternative format should contact the 
Office of Civil Rights, Montana Department of Transportation, 2701 Prospect Avenue, PO Box 201001, Helena, MT 59620. Telephone 
406-444-5416 or Montana Relay Service at 711. 

MDT Wants Your Comments on New Projects Contact Information 

To receive a list of highway projects MDT plans to present to the 
Transportation Commission, please visit 
www.mdtmtgovIother/webdateextemal/planninq/proposed proi.pdf, 

Only the most frequently requested numbers are listed here. For 
an area or person not listed, call 800-714-7296 (in Montana only) 
or 406-444-3423. The TTY number is 800-335-7592. 
Newsline Editor-Lauren Eichenfels (leichenfels@mt.gov).... 
 406-444-7614 
Planning Division Administrator-Rob Stapley (rostapley@mt.gov) 
 406-444-3445 
Bike/Ped-Shelby Clark (mdtbikeped@mt.gov) 406-444-9273 
Environmental-Tom Martin (tomartin@mt.gov) 406-444-0879 

Highway Traffic Safety-Kevin Dusko (kedusko@mt.gov) 
 406-444-7411 

Map Orders- https://www.mdt.mtmov/publications/maps.aspx 

www.mdtragov/pubinvolve/stip.shtml, or call 800-714-7296. You 
can mail comments on proposed projects to MDT Project Analysis 
Manager, PO Box 201001, Helena, MT 59620-1001 or email them 
to mdtstip@mt.gov. 

L 
Inside This Issue 
New MDT Director 1 
Railway Safety in Montana 1 
Federal Surface Transportation Program Status 1 
TA Program, MFERL Program 2 
Save the Dates: Annual Transportation Safety Meeting 2 
New Buses and Vans to Support Public Transit 2 
MDT's Cpl. Adam Romkema Honored with Medal of Valor 3 
MDT Advances Stormwater Infrastructure Mapping to Comply 
with MS4 Permit 3 
2024 Summer Intern Program 3 
Montana CPS Program 4 
MDT's Safety Related Research Nationally Recognized 4 
Tribal Youth in Montana Gain Hands-On Driver Education 4 
Montana Traffic Safety Dates 5 
October is National Pedestrian Safety Month 5 
Back to School Safety 5 
MDT Continues to Support Montana Infrastructure 
Improvements with Federal, State Funding Opportunities 6 
MDT Awards Traffic Safety Grants to Support Vision Zero 6 
Utility Permits: Overview and Process 6 
A Monument to a Failed Dream 7 

 406-444-6119 
Multimodal Planning VACANT 
System Impact-LeRoy Wosoba (Iwosoba@mt.gov) 
 406-444-9233 
Projects-Paul Johnson (paujohnson@mt.gov)  406-444-7259 

Road Data & Mapping-Brian Andersen (brandersen@mt.gov) 
 406-444-6103 

Secondary Roads-Andy White (awhite@mt.gov)  406-444-9194 

Traffic Data-Becky Duke (bduke@mt.gov) 406-444-6122 

Transit-Adam Kraft (akraft@mt.gov) 406-444-6120 

This document is printed at state expense. Information on the cost of publication may be obtained by contacting the Department of Administration. 

uogepodsuedi joluetumedeci eueluon `uoisytia Bumueld pue `gsuaii 'peel aqj jo uolledyqnd Apepenb e aullsmeN 

pi ruj eueluov\I en= ol ampnalseiju! uonepodsue4 Tue!!!sai pue ales a uiew!ew pue eleiedo `pl!nq ueld O Si uo!ss!t.0 slain] 

paisenbaH ao!AJas wnieH 

68 '01\I l!wied 

11A1 'eueleH 

alVd 
obelsod 's'n 

pJepuels pos aid 

uo!Tepodsuall lo luewpedea 

VNVINOW 

WO I.-03969 eueluon 'eual01-1 
1.001-0Z xoe Od 

anuanv podsaid LOLZ 

uogepodsueil o luatupedea eue;uoirg 
uo!s!ma 6u!uueld '8 4!sue.0 'Heel 



1 2024 'I 1 CITY-COUNTY PLANNING BOARD 
SEP 

PO Box 305

CITY OF HARDIN/BIG HORN COUNTY HARDIN MT 59034-0305 

September 10, 2024 

Hardin City Council 

406 N Cheyenne Ave 
Hardin, MT 59034 

Re: Glick Zone Change from R1 to 11 

To The Council, 

At the September 9, 2024, monthly meeting, and after holding the prescribed public hearing, the Planning Board 
voted to recommend approval of the zone change request submitted by Nolan Foster on behalf of Nelson and 
Clara Glick. The vote was three in favor and two opposed. 

The subject property is located in northeast Hardin, at the east end of Gable Blvd. The property is legally 
described as a 43,560 square foot, 132'x330' Tract, in the NE4SE4 of Section 14, Township 1 South, Range 33 
East. The subject property is owned by Mr. and Mrs. Glick. 

The request, if granted, would change the zoning from R1 toll. The current 111 zone allows churches and other 
places of worship, golf courses, home occupation businesses, hospitals and philanthropic institutions, private 
schools, public schools, public parks, libraries, community buildings, single-family dwellings, and multi-family 
dwellings as conditional uses. The change toll would allow uses to include assembly of boats, iron products, 
firearms, appliances, tools, etc.; bottling works and breweries; cold storage and warehousing; food products, 
storage, and packaging; feed and seed storage; laboratories, research and testing; leather good, treatment and 
storage; lumberyards, machine shops, manufacturing of boxes, crates, furniture, clothing, food products, etc.; 
oils and gas extraction and products equipment and storage; prefabricated building materials assembly; public 
utility stations and storage; railroad siding; wholesale merchandising, and certain agricultural uses. Residential 
and other commercial uses may be allowed as conditional uses. See the Hardin Zoning Ordinance for specific 
allowed and conditional uses. There is currently Ii zoning north and west of the property. 

The applicant has indicated that the plan is to develop the property as a relay yard for FedEx, as it will allow for 
more room than FedEx currently has. The 11 zone does not list relay yards, truck terminals, or commercial 
parking lots as allowed uses, but does allow similar uses to what is allowed in the 11 zone to be reviewed as a 
conditional use. Therefore, if the zone change is approved, a conditional use permit (CUP) will need to be 
obtained in order to develop the property as a FedEx yard. The CUP process will include review of the specific 
use and there may be additional requirements as part of that review. The City is not under any obligation to 
grant a CUP for a future use, and a CUP is not under consideration at this time, as it will need to be reviewed and 
approved, conditionally approved, or denied based on its own merits. 

The Planning Board's recommendation is based on the evidence provided in the application, the staff report, 
and presented at the public hearing. Public comments included concerns about maintaining a buffer between 
industrial and residential uses, how traffic patterns may be impacts by different uses, and potential impacts of 
future uses including the potential relay yard. 



CITY-COUNTY PLANNING BOARD PO Box 305 

CITY OF HARDIN/BIG HORN COUNTY HARDIN MT 59034-0305 

Regards, 

Corrina Kirschenmann-Kuntz / F.J.M. 

Chairman 



GLICK ZONE CHANGE REQUEST — STAFF REPORT 

Date: August 28, 2024 

To: Hardin City-County Planning Board Members 

From: Forrest J. Mandeville, AICP — Planning Consultant 

RE: Glick Zone Change Application 

Required Planning Board Action: Review, receive public comment at a public hearing, and make a 

recommendation to the City Council. 

Recommendation: Approval 

Recommended Motion: Having reviewed and considered the application materials, project 
memorandum, public comments and all of the information presented, I hereby move to recommend 
approval of the Glick zone change request, with the findings and conditions included in the project 
memorandum. 

Project/Application Summary: 

Nolan Foster, on behalf of Nelson and Clara Glick, has applied for a zone change for property located 
in northeast Hardin, at the east end of Gable Blvd. The request, if approved, would change the zoning 
from R1 toll. The property is legally described as a 43,560 square foot, 132'x330' Tract, in the NE4SE4 
of Section 14, Township 1 South, Range 33 East. The subject property is owned by Mr. and Mrs. Glick. 

The applicant has indicated that the plan is to develop the property as a relay yard for FedEx, as it will 
allow for more room than FedEx currently has. The 11 zone does not list relay yards, truck terminals, 
or commercial parking lots as allowed uses, but does allow similar uses to what is allowed in the Ii 
zone to be reviewed as a conditional use. Therefore, if the zone change is approved, a conditional use 
permit will need to be obtained in order to develop the property as a FedEx yard. The C1 and C2 
districts may allow the planned use without additional permitting, but the property does not meet the 
minimum size for a district. 

Required Board Action: 

The City/County Planning Board is tasked with conducting a duly advertised public hearing, 
considering the application, and making a recommendation to the City Council (Common Council). The 
Board's decision must be made within 30 working days of receiving a complete application. A 
complete application for this request was received on July 31, 2024. 
The City Council, after receiving the Board's recommendation, shall make a final decision on the 
application. The City will send a notice of its decision to the applicant and the Planning Board. 

1 Glick Zone Change 



\ 

11431 

1C 

1A 

PARK RS 

1 

Iti: 
KAP° - 

la argil 
IIII 
mall 
MU 

2 

r Ramsay 

COW 

a 8 

3A4 

!MOOAsemSE 

1_1426 

11432 

11433 

IIWN ST 

NiatiS 

L14211 

L1442 

_ 

11441 

4 4 S9 
/466 

WATSON 

11275 LIZ 

L1400 I 

1 

MN ST 

Commerce Subdivision 

L1430 

T0015 

T0016 \ 

Meredith Minor 

T001640 

T0017 

Subject Property (Blue). The Zone Change, If Approved, would be Same as 
Property to the West and North 

Subject Property (Blue) and Vicinity 

2 Glick Zone Change 



Findings of Fact: (Section references are to the Hardin City Code unless otherwise noted) 

Section 11-1-9-2 of the Hardin City Code outlines the processes necessary for a zone change to be 

approved. Municipal zoning is governed in statute by 76-2-301, et seq. State code requires that local 

governments take into consideration during deliberations on proposed zone changes the "purposes of 
zoning" as follows: 

1. Compliance with the Growth Management Plan. The 2009 Growth Management Plan 

identifies the subject property as Residential on the map of the Highway Commercial 

Planning Area" on page 49 (see map below). The map also shows a future collector road on 

the north side the property. 
The requested zone change does not appear to be in conflict with the 2021 Growth Policy 

and Downtown Revitalization Plan. 

3 

HIGHWAY COMMERCIAL PLANNING AREA 

HIGHWAY COMMERCIAL AREA 
HIGHWAY COMMERCIAL AREA 

Ili MI U1 11110 

AY COMMERCIAL AREA 

Northwest Planning Area Map from 2009 Growth Management Plan 

2. Congestion in the streets. The vicinity contains commercial/industrial uses, as well as 

residential and agricultural uses. The subject property is currently vacant. The zone change 

may allow for some additional traffic through higher use of the subject property, espec -y-

Glick Zone Change 



a FedEx yard is eventually developed on the site. Gable Blvd is gravel surfaced at the 

property, and upgrades could be necessary. 

3. Secure safety from fire, panic, and other dangers. The change, if approved, should have 

negligible impacts on safety given the current and surrounding uses, depending on future 

uses. 

4. Promote health and the general welfare. No significant impacts on health and general 

welfare are anticipated if this zone change is approved. Future uses are subject to the 

provisions in the zoning code. 

5. Provide adequate light and air. The zone change should have little to no impact on the 

provision of light and air, if approved. 

6. Prevent the overcrowding of land. The zone change would allow commercial activity on the 
subject property, which could lead to more crowding depending on future uses. Given the 
commercial nature of adjacent property and that the zoning would match zoning to the west 
and north, significant overcrowding is not anticipated as a result of this change. 

7. Avoid undue concentration of population. The site is currently zoned R1, which allows 
churches and other places of worship, golf courses, home occupation businesses, hospitals 
and philanthropic institutions, private schools, public schools, public parks, libraries, 
community buildings, single-family dwellings, and multi-family dwellings as conditional uses. 
The change to 11 would allow uses to include assembly of boats, iron products, firearms, 
appliances, tools, etc.; bottling works and breweries; cold storage and warehousing; food 
products, storage, and packaging; feed and seed storage; laboratories, research and testing; 
leather good, treatment and storage; lumberyards, machine shops, manufacturing of boxes, 
crates, furniture, clothing, food products, etc.; oils and gas extraction and products 
equipment and storage; prefabricated building materials assembly; public utility stations 
and storage; railroad siding; wholesale merchandising, and certain agricultural uses. 
Residential and other commercial uses may be allowed as conditional uses. See the Hardin 
Zoning Ordinance for specific allowed and conditional uses. 
Because there is similar zoning owned by the same property owners adjacent to the 
property, this zone change is not expected to impact population concentration. 
If the site is developed as a FedEx yard, a conditional use permit (CUP) will be required. The 
CUP process will include review of the specific use and there may be additional requirements 
as part of that review. The City is not under any obligation to grant a CUP for a future use, 
and CUP is not under consideration at this time, as it will need to be reviewed and approved, 
conditionally approved, or denied based on it's own merits. 

4 Glick Zone Change 



8. Facilitate the adequate provision of transportation, water, schools, parks, and other public 
requirements. This zone change should have little to no impact of the provision of 
transportation, water, schools, parks, and other public facilities. 

9. Character of the district and its peculiar suitability for particular uses and with a view to 
conserving the value of buildings and encouraging the most appropriate use of land 
throughout such municipality. The site is surrounded by 11 zoning to the west and north, and 
R1 zoning to the east and south. Granting of the zone change would expand allowed uses, as 
discussed above. Approving this zone change would not be an instance of spot-zoning 
because there is similar zoning to the south. 

Recommendation: 

Based on the findings contained in this report, it is recommended that the City/County Planning Board 
recommend approval of the zone change request. Final approval is subject to the decision of the City 
Council. 

5 Glick Zone Change 



Angela Zimmer, Deputy City Clerk 

Subject: FW: Glick Zone Change 

From: Forrest Mandeville <Forrest@forrestmandevilleconsulting.com> 
Sent: Friday, September 13, 2024 1:29 PM 
To: Angela Zimmer, Deputy City Clerk <cityclerk@hardinmt.com> 
Cc: Linda Hill <crowrez1@yahoo.com>; Corrinna Kirschenman <corrinakirsch@gmail.com> 
Subject: Re: Glick Zone Change 

Angela, 

I understand there have been some concerns expressed that a landowner near the proposed zone change 
requested by Mr. and Mrs. Glick was not properly notified of the pending application. The Hardin Zoning 
Ordinance (Section 11-1-9-2.A.4.) requires names and addresses of all property owners of record within 150 
feet of the proposed location of a zone change. This information was provided by Nolan Foster on behalf of 
Mr. and Mrs. Glick in the application requesting the zone change. The property of the landowner with 
concerns about proper noticing is not within 150 feet of the subject property. In fact, it appears that the 
property that is proposed for a zone change is about 530 feet to the east of the property owned by the 
landowner in question: 

1 



22.0934.14.4.38.01.0000 

GABLE RD HARDIN, MT 59034 

Measure 

Distance 

562.66 ft 

- •107.607 45.745 Degrees 

24() fti 

It should also be noted that the public hearing on the proposed zone change was properly noticed in the 
newspaper and adequate public notice was given for the City-County Planning Board meeting. 

Please let me know if you have any questions or if I can be of further assistance. 

Thank you, 

Forrest J. Mandeville, AICP 

Owner/Planner 

Forrest Mandeville Consulting 

N./ 

N 

2 



ECEIVE 
JUL 31 2024 

ZONE CHANGE APPLICATION REQUEST FORM 
CITY OF HARDIN, MONTANA 

Name and email of property owner(s) and agents (if any): Nelson & Clara Glick (owner), Nolan Foster (engineer) 

Address & phone of property owner(s):  RR 1 BOX 1110A, HARD IN, MT 59034-9714, 

Legal or metes and bounds description of property, tract(s), to be rezoned:  
S14, TO1 S, R33 E, 43560 SQUARE FEET, 132X 330' TRACT IN NE4SE4 

 A scale map showing dimensions, acreage, and location of the property, tract(s), and 
adjacent parcels within 150 feet. 

 Attach a list of property owners of record and their addresses within 150 feet surrounding 
the property. 

Present zoning is single-family residential (RI) 
Present zoning and desired zoning: Desired zoning is general industrial (11). 

 Provide an accurate straight-line drawing prepared within thirty (30) days prior to application 
depicting the property, and include a list of names and addresses of all property owners of record 
owning property within 150 feet of the proposed location; and a copy of the geocode map of all 
property owners of record owning property within one hundred fifty feet of the proposed location 
provided by the Montana department of revenue property assessment Big horn office. 

Show present and desired zoning of the subject tract(s). 

 Twelve (12) copies of the zone change application form with accompanying information 
shall be submitted to the City Clerk on the first day of the month prior to the month in which the 
Zoning Commission will hear the application. If the application is not complete its review will be 
postponed one month until all required information is presented. 

The Zoning Commission will notify adjacent property owners of record and advertise and 
conduct a public hearing before making its recommendation to the Hardin Common Council. 

Review fee: $150.00 (Please make checks payable to: City County-Planning Board) 

I understand the review fee is not refundable and does not constitute a payment for zone change. 
I am the applicant or the authorized agent of the applicant. I understand I must appear before the 
Zoning Commission and the Common Council when my application is considered. All the 
information presented herewith is true and correct to the best of my knowledge. 

Signature of applicant or agent:  Nolan Fost 0-003

07.31 00:50:05-01700. Date: 31 JUL 24 



PROPERTY LEGEND ( 
LOCATION J • \ 1 111 RESIDF-NTIAL DISTRICT) , ZONING (SINGLE-EAMLY 

ZONING II (GENERAL INDUSTRIAL DISTRICT) 

GASEL BIND 
-.--.•••••••• PARCEL BOUNDARY 

14TH ST. W — — — — — — ROAD RIGHT.OFWAY (ROW) 

WATSON DR 
I3TH ST. W , .•••• 4. 44)44.• PARCEL OFFSET 

12TH ST. W 

HARDIN, MT 
IITHST W 

. 

z 

I

VICINITY MAP 
PARCEL REQUESTING ZONING CHANGE 
CURRENT ZONING: R1 
PROPOSED ZONING: 11 

8.55.1' ••••• -.• 
••-•••••••-.•, •••• 

I 

—,-- 
PRIMARY OWNER.
GUCK NELSONS CLARA / 
RR 1 BOX 1110A GUCK 

HARDIN. MT 59034-9714 
HARDIN. 

PROPERTY ADDRESS' 
19 GABLE Ro 
HARDIN, MT 50034 

AREA. 

—7 
— 

PRIMARY OWNER 
NELSON N & CLARA M 

FtR 1 BOX ilioA 
MT stoccwant 

PROPERTY ADDRESS: 
GABLE RD 

HARDIN. MT 59034 

_\...._ ...-7\— — .............. 

, 7 
PRimARY owNs. 
BECKER EARL w & 
1543 N CENTER AVE 

• HARDIN, MT 59034-1104 

\ I 
, PROPERTY ADDRESS 

1543 N CENTER AVE • 
\ HARDIN. AIT 59034 

\\) 

b 

sa 

4 99 ACRES 

GEOCODE 
22-0934-14-4-40.01-0000 

/ 

224393414-44841-0000 

AREA: 
I 0 ACRES 

GECCODE-

AREA.
5 ACRES 

. DEOCODE 
2243934.144, 11-0 .0000 

\ ' 

I 
 150' OFFSET FROM PROPERTY 

PARCEL REOUEST1NG 
UNE OF 

ZONING VARIANCE 

M. 

1 

.... .... 
526 V 

PRIMARY OWNER' 
GLICK NELSON 
RR 1 BOX 1110A 
HARDIN. f.4T 59034.9714 

PROPERTY ADDRESS: 
GABLE RD 
HARDIN. MT 59034 

AREA: 
$99 ACRES 

GEOCODE 
/ 22-0934-14-4.37-01-0000 

N i 

t 

1 

' 

I 

132,0' 

N 

I. 

• 

I • 
I, 

1845 

PRIMARY OWNER:. 
BECKER EARL W & 
1543 N CENTER AVE 

1 HARDIN, Ntt 59034-1104 
• 

PROPERTY ADDRESS 
WATSON DR ' 

\ HARM. MT 69034 

I AREA: 
499 ACRES 

GEOCODE. 
2243934-14-4-39-01-0000 . 

, 
\ 

496.8 GABEL BLVD 

PRIMARY OWNER 
HAIR ALOYSIUS 

132.0' 813.12 

LI',
._ 164 0 

.... 
PFUMARY OWNER: 

• CALVIN JAMES A 
1415 WATSON DRIVE 

2490 HARDIN. MT 59034 
BIG .1 

PO BOX 306 ' 
CROW AGENCY, MT 69022-0305 

PROPERTY ADDRESS: 

f 
1 . I N,%! 1 

I 

I 

• 
PRIMARY OWNER PROPERTY ADDRESS: EBERT MICHAEL E • 1415 WATSON DR \ 1417 WATSON OR I KARON bar 59034 , HEROIN, mr 59034 , 

7 WATSON OR 
HARDIN, MT 69034 

1 
' 'CI 

2 

M 
PRC•PERTY ADDRESS: 

....I._  1840 UM-WATSON DR :I 

AREA 

\ 
&28 ACRES 

': 

22.0934-14.4-29-12-0000 Lt._ 
0.5 ACRES 

GEOCODe 

AREA 

_ 
I ' 
' 

4—' "Tr\ 7 

' "" 

1640 

7,, 

HEROIN. MT 59034 

1 95 ACRES 

•GEocooE, 
Z2.0934.14-4-31-01-0000 • 

GEOCODE 
22•093444-4-32-040000 

. 

\ 
.1. 

WATSON DR.   PRIMARY OWNER: T• TOS737
  ........) TOEWSLEERCW A MARLENE 

PRIMARY OWNER. ROAD ROW ITYP) 49 WATSON DR 
PURCELL JOSEPH W HARDIN. MT 59034-1107 

9 WATSON DR 
HAROiN. MT 59034-1101 PROPERTY ADDRESS.

4S WATSON DR 
PROPERTY ADDRESS. HARDIN. MT 59034 

9 WATSON DR 
HARDIN, MT 551:134 AREA: 150 17 1 205 

1.0 ACRES 
AREA 

1 0 ACRES GEOCODE.: SCALE 1-.1W 
22.093414-4-4-134000 

GEOCODE: wHEN PLOTTED AT 11)07 
22-0934-14-4-29-104000 

ZONING CHANGE REQUEST 

PROPERTY ADDRESS: 

POWER 
GABLE RD. HARDIN, MT 

J.EGAL DP-WM.110N: 
$14, 101 $, R33 E, 43560 SQUARE FEET, 132%330' TRACT IN NE4SE4 

DRAWING NAME 

PARCEL MAP 



Contractor's Application for Payment 

Owner: City of Hardin Owner's Project No.: 2223-08R23 

Engineer: Stahly Engineering Engineer's Project No.: 

Contractor: Askin Construction Contractor's Project No.: 

Project: Water, Sewer and Road Improvements 

Contract: 

Application No.: 1 Application Date: 9/3/2024 

Application Period: From 8/21/2024 to 8/30/2024 

1. Original Contract Price $ 979,750.00 

2. Net change by Change Orders $ - 

3. Current Contract Price (Line 1 + Line 2) $ 979,750.00 

4. Total Work completed and materials stored to date 

(Sum of Column G Lump Sum Total and Column J Unit Price Total) $ 177,956.61 

5. Retainage 

a. 5% X $ 142,250.00 Work Completed = $ 7,112.50 

b. 5% X $ 35,706.61 Stored Materials = $ 1,785.33 

c. Total Retainage (Line 5.a + Line 5.b) $ 8,897.83 

6. Amount eligible to date (Line 4 - Line 5.c) $ 169,058.78 

7. Less previous payments (Line 6 from prior application) $ - 

8. Amount due this application $ 169,058.78 

9. 1% Gross Receipts Tax $ 1,690.59 
10. Amount due Contractor This Application $ 167,368.19 

11. Balance to finish, including retainage (Line 3 - Line 4 + Line 5.c) $ 810,691.22 

Contractor's Certification 
The undersigned Contractor certifies, to the best of its knowledge, the following: 
(1) All previous progress payments received from Owner on account of Work done under the Contract have been 
applied on account to discharge Contractor's legitimate obligations incurred in connection with the Work covered by 
prior Applications for Payment; 
(2) Title to all Work, materials and equipment incorporated in said Work, or otherwise listed in or covered by this 
Application for Payment, will pass to Owner at time of payment free and clear of all liens, security interests, and 
encumbrances (except such as are covered by a bond acceptable to Owner indemnifying Owner against any such 
liens, security interest, or encumbrances); and 
(3) All the Work covered by this Application for Payment is in accordance with the Contract Documents and is not 
defective. 

Contractor: Askin Construction LLC (Justin Biehl, Project Manager) 

. __ , 
Signature: Date: 9/3/2024 

Recommended by Engineer Approved by Owner 
-...____ 

By: By: 

Title: Matthew Smith, PE (Project Manager) Title: 

Date: 9/11/2024 Date: 

Approved by Funding Agency 

By: By: 

Title: Title: 

Date:   Date:  

EJCDC C-620 Contractor's Application for Payment 
(c) 2018 National Society of Professional Engineers for EJCDC. All rights reserved. 



Progress Estimate - Unit Price Work Contractor's Application for Payment 

Owner: 
Engineer: 
Contractor: 
Project: 
Contract: 

City of Hardin Owner's Project No.: 
Engineer's Project No.: 
Contractor's Project No.: 

2223-08R23 
Stably Engineering 
Askin Construction 
Water, Sewer and Road Improvements 

Application No.: 1 Application Period: From 08/21/24 to 08/30/24 Application Date: 09/03/24 

A B c D E F G H i 1 K L 

Bid Item 
No. 

Contract Information Work Completed 
matedais

Currently Stored 
Mot in G) 

Work Completed 
and Materials 

Stored to Date 
(11+ 0 

% of 
Value of 

Item
(J / F) 

(%) 

Balance to Firiltilv , 

($) 

r • 

..34 ;•• 4, 
k,

, 
' Description 

Item 
Quantity 

Units U ialite Total Value . 

, 

, 
'Fetal Esitmated 

' 
Quantity 

Installed to Date 

Value of Work 
Completed to Date 

(E X G) 

($)

Origi ntract 

Schedule A- General -1st Street Reconstrcuction 
A.10 Mobilization/Demobilization 1 LS $ 56,000.00 $ 56,000.00 0.25 $ 14,000.00 $ 14,000.00 25% $ 42,000.00 
A.20 Taxes, Bonds, and Insurance 1 LS $ 11,000.00 $ 11,000.00 1 $ 11,000.00 $ 11,000.00 100% $ 
A.30 Traffic Control 1 LS $ 4,900.00 $ 4,900.00 0.50 $ 2,450.00 $ 2,450.00 50% $ 2,450.00 

Total Schedule A $ 71,900.00 $ 27450.00 $ 2745000 38% $ 44,450.00 

Schedule B- Water Main and Services- 1st Street Construction 
B.10 Exploratory Excavation 4 HR $ 650.00 $ 2,600.00 16 $ 10,400.00 $ 10,400.00 400% $ (7,800.00) 
8.20 8" X 6" Reducer 2 EA $ 800.00 $ 1,600.00 1 $ 800.00 $ 800.00 50% $ 800.00 
B.30 8"- 45° Bends 4 EA $ 950.00 $ 3,800.00 2 $ 1,900.00 $ 1,900.00 50% $ 1,900.00 
B.40 8" C-900 PVC Water Main 1265 IF $ 80.00 $ 101,200.00 445 $ 35,600.00 $ 35,600.00 35% $ 65,600.00 
13.50 8" Gate Valve & Box 4 EA $ 4,000.00 $ 16,000.00 1 $ 4,000.00 $ 4,000.00 25% $ 12,000.00 
B.60 1" Water Service with Curb Stop 20 EA $ 3,000.00 $ 60,000.00 9 $ 27,000.00 $ 27,000.00 45% $ 33,000.00 
B.70 6" Water Service with Gate Valve 3 EA $ 7,500.00 $ 22,500.00 1 $ 7,500.00 $ 7,500.00 33% $ 15,000.00 
B.90 Fire Hydrant Assembly 2 EA $ 12,500.00 $ 25,000.00 1 $ 12,500.00 $ 12,500.00 50% $ 12,500.00 

8.100 Temporary Water 1 LS $ 56,000.00 $ 56,000.00 0.20 $ 11,200.00 $ 11,200.00 20% $ 44,800.00 
8.110 Connect to Existing Main 2 EA $ 2,500.00 $ 5,000.00 1 $ 2,500.00 $ 2,500.00 50% $ 2,500.00 
B.120 Utility Crossings 3 EA $ 700.00 $ 2,100.00 2 $ 1,400.00 $ 1,400.00 67% $ 700.00 
8.130 Geotextile Fabric 1900 SY $ 3.00 $ 5,700.00 $ $ 0% $ 5,700.00 
8.140 Pit Run Subbase 785 CV $ 41.00 $ 32,185.00 $ $ 0% $ 32,185.00 

B.150 1-1/2" minus Crushed Base Course 420 CV $ 44.00 $ 18,480.00 $ - $ 0% $ 18,480.00 
B.160 3" Type B Asphalt 1900 SY 21.50 $ 40,850.00 $ $ 0% $ 40,850,00 

Total Current Materials Stored $ 35,706.61 $ 35,706.61 $ (35,706.61) 

Total Schedule B $ 393,015.00 $ 114,800.00 $ 35,706.61 $ 150,506.61 38% $ 242,508.39 

Schedule C- Street construction-1st Street 
C.10 Excavation above Subgrade 3250 CV $ 20.00 $ 65,000.00 $ $ 65,000.00 
C.20 Sub-Excavation/Replacement 100 CV $ 60.00 $ 6,000.00 $ $ 6,000.00 
C.30 Geotextile 2600 SY $ 3.00 $ 7,800.00 $ $ 7,800.00 
C.40 Pit Run Subbase Course 1100 CV $ 41.00 $ 45,100.00 $ $ 45,100.00 
C.50 1-1/2" Minus Crushed Base Course 575 CV $ 44.00 $ 25,300.00 $ $ 25,300.00 
C.60 3" Asphalt 2600 SY $ 21.50 $ 55,900.00 $ $ 55,900.00 

C.70 Curb & Gutter Replacement 200 IF $ 50.00 $ 10,000.00 $ $ 10,000.00 
C.80 5' wide Sidewalk 500 SF $ 8.00 $ 4,000.00 $ $ 4,000.00 

Total Schedule C $ 219,100.00 $ $ 0% $ 219,100.00 

Unit Price 
EJCDC C-620 Contractor's Application for Payment 

(c) 2018 National Society of Professional Engineers for EJCDC. All rights reserved. 1 of 2 



Progress Estimate - Unit Price Work Contractor's Application for Payment 

Owner: 
Engineer: 
Contractor: 
Project: 
Contract: 

City of Hardin Owner's Project No.: 
Engineer's Project No.: 
Contractor's Project No.: 

2223-08R23 
Stably Engineering 
Askin Construction 
Water, Sewer and Road Improvements 

Application No.: 1 Application Period: From 08/21/24 to 08/30/24 Application Date: 09/03/24 

A 13 C I D E F G H I 1 K I. 

tilidltem 
No 

.., 

. . 

''' 4.' 
Description 

.. 
. 

i i' ..c4  •';, 

.. 

Contract Information Work Completed 
Materials 

Currently Stored 
(not in G) 

($) 

Work Completed 
and Materials 
SW-1*d to Date 

(H + I) 

% of 
Value of 

Item 
(il/F) , 

Balance to Finish 
(F -1) 

($) 

Item 
i Quant ty 

Units Unit , it Price ,. . , 
', 4: ' ,k '''; ,V 

Total Value 

> :.., •!,--.., , 

Total'isitmated 
Quantity 

Installed to Date 

Value of Work 
Completed to Date 

(EKG) 

. ($) 

Additive Alternate- Terry Avenue 
10 Mobilization/Demobilization 1 LS $ 8,500.00 $ 8,500.00 $ $ 8,500.00 
20 Taxes, Bonds, and Insurance 1 LS $ 2,500.00 $ 2,500.00 $ $ 2,500.00 
30 Excavation above subgrade 875 CV $ 20.00 $ 17,500.00 $ $ 17,500.00 
40 1-1/2" Minus Crushed Base Course 270 CV $ 45.00 $ 12,150.00 $ - $ 12,150.00 
50 3" Asphalt Restoration 198 TON $ 115.00 $ 22,770.00 $ - $ 22,770.00 
60 Pit Run Subbase Course 505 CV $ 42.00 $ 21,210.00 $ $ 21,210.00 
70 Curb & Gutter Replacement 186 LF $ 50.00 $ 9,300.00 $ $ 9,300.00 
80 Valley Gutter Replacement 38 LF $ 110.00 $ 4,180.00 $ $ 4,180.00 
90 Traffic Control 1 LS $ 2,500.00 $ 2,500.00 $ $ 2,500.00 
100 Geotextile 1450 SY $ 3.00 $ 4,350.00 $ - $ 4,350.00 

Total Additive Alternate $ 104,960.00 $ $ 0% $ 104,960.00 

Schedule D- Gable Boulevard Water Extension 
0.10 Mobilization/Demobilization 1 LS $ 9,500.00 $ 9,500.00 $ - $ 9,500.00 
0.20 Taxes, Bonds, and Insurance 1 LS $ 2,500.00 $ 2,500.00 $ $ 2,500.00 
0.30 Traffic Control 1 LF $ 2,500.00 $ 2,500.00 $ - $ 2,500.00 
D.40 8" C-900 PVC Water Main 810 EA $ 100.00 $ 81,000.00 $ $ 81,000.00 
0.50 1" Water Service with Curb Stop 10 EA $ 3,000.00 $ 30,000.00 $ $ 30,000.00 
0.60 8" Gate Valve & Box 3 EA $ 4,000.00 $ 12,000.00 $ - $ 12,000.00 
0.70 Fire Hydrant Assembly 2 EA $ 11,000.00 $ 22,000.00 $ $ 22,000.00 
0.80 8" End Cap 1 EA $ 775.00 $ 775.00 $ $ 775.00 
0.90 Connect to Existing Main 2 EA $ 2,500.00 $ 5,000.00 $ $ 5,000.00 

Total Schedule D $ 165,275.00 $ - $ - 0% $ 165,275.00 

Schedule E- 6th Street West Sanitary Sewer Manhole Replacement 
E.10 Mobilization/Demobilization 1 LS $ 3,000.00 $ 3,000.00 $ $ 3,000.00 
E.20 Taxes, Bonds, and Insurance 1 LS $ 1,500.00 $ 1,500.00 $ - $ 1,500.00 
E.30 Traffic Control 1 LS $ 1,000.00 $ 1,000.00 $ $ 1,000.00 
E.40 Remove/ Replace Existing Manhole 1 LS $ 20,000.00 $ 20,000.00 - $ 0% $ 20,000.00 

Total Schedule E $ 25,500.00 $ - $ - 0% $ 25,500.00 

Original Contract Totals $ 1,934,000.00 $ 142,250.00 $ 35,706.61 $ 177,956.61 9% $ 801,793.39 

Unit Price 
EJCDC C-620 Contractor's Application for Payment 

(c) 2018 National Society of Professional Engineers for EJCDC. All rights reserved. 2 of 2 



Event Notice 

Issuer: City of Hardin, Montana 

Bonds: Tax Increment Industrial Infrastructure Development Revenue Bonds 
(Rocky Mountain Power, Inc. Project), Series 2006 

CUSIP Number: 412236 AA9 

Dated: September 6, 2024 

Events: Interest Payment Delinquency; Principal Payment Delinquency 

The City of Hardin, Montana (the "City") provides this notice pursuant to Sections 3(c)(i) 
and (iii) of its Continuing Disclosure Undertaking, dated as of September 28, 2006, with respect 
to its $12,600,952.80 Tax Increment Industrial Infrastructure Development Revenue Bonds 
(Rocky Mountain Power, Inc. Project), Series 2006 (the "Bonds"). On December 10, 2014, the 
City filed a Voluntary Notice on EMMA with regard to the Bonds (the "Voluntary Notice") and 
subsequently filed other voluntary notices and event notices. Capitalized terms used in this 
notice and not defined herein are given the meanings in the Voluntary Notice. The Voluntary 
Notice and the prior event and other voluntary notices should be read in their entirety. 

The City has remitted to the bond trustee under the Indenture (the "Trustee") tax 
increment revenues with respect to the Facility, as further described under the Voluntary Notice. 
However, such tax increment revenues are not and have not been sufficient to pay principal of or 
interest on the Bonds when due. 

The City understands that there are not sufficient funds in the funds and accounts held by 
the Trustee under the Indenture to make the September 1, 2024 interest payment due on the 
Bonds, the September 1, 2024 principal payment due on the Bonds, or certain other payments 
that have come due on the Bonds prior to September 1, 2024. For further information, please see 
the event notice filed by the Trustee on September 4, 2024. 



11Vbank. 
NOTICE OF CONTINUING EVENTS OF DEFAULT AND DEFAULT DISTRIBUTION 

City of Hardin, Montana 
Tax Increment Industrial Infrastructure Development Revenue Bonds 

(Rocky Mountain Power, Inc. Project) Series 2006 
(CUSIP No.* 412236AA9) 

Please forward this notice to beneficial holders. 

U.S. Bank Trust Company, National Association as successor in interest to U.S. Bank National 
Association is the Trustee (the "Trustee") under that certain Indenture of Trust, dated as of September 1, 
2006 (the "Indenture"), by and between the City of Hardin, Montana as Issuer (the "City"), and the 
Trustee, which governs the above-referenced bonds (the "Bonds"). 

There are multiple events of default that have occurred and are continuing due to the Trustee not having 
enough funds to pay interest and principal as they become due beginning September 1, 2015. The Trustee 
is evaluating its available options, actions and remedies under the Indenture as a result of the occurrence of 
an Event of Default under the Indenture. Under the Indenture, holders of at least a majority of the 
aggregate principal amount of outstanding Bonds have the right to direct certain of the Trustee's 
actions under and subject to the conditions contained in the Indenture, which include (among other 
things), providing the Trustee with an indemnity against liability satisfactory to the Trustee. At 
this time, the Trustee is applying funds received towards interest in arrears. 

On September 9, 2024, the Trustee will make a Default Distribution in the aggregate amount of 
$300,000.00 which is the equivalent of interest on outstanding par of $20,920,000 paid at a rate of 
.014340344 which is equal to $14.3403442 per $1,000 face held to the holders of record on 9/08/24. 
This represents a portion of the interest that was due on 3/01/20. The balance of interest due on 3/1/20 
in the amount of $324,218.20 as well as the interest due on 9/1/20, 3/1/21, 9/1/21, 3/1/22, 9/1/22, 3/1/23, 
9/01/23, 3/1/24, and 9/1/24 in the amount of $653,750.00 for each respective date will be due and unpaid 
at the time of this distribution. Following this distribution there will remain approximately $60,000.00 in 
the Debt Service Reserve Fund (the "Reserve Fund"). 

No assurances can be given with respect to the amount or timing of any future distributions to holders of 
Bonds. Prior to any distribution to holders of B onds, funds held under the Indenture are to be used first for 
payment of the fees and costs incurred or to be incurred by the Trustee in performing its duties, as well as 
for any indemnities owing or to become owing to the Trustee. This includes, but is not limited to, 
compensation for the time the Trustee spends, and the fees and costs of counsel and other agents it 
employs, to pursue remedies or other actions to protect the security or other interests of holders of Bonds. 

The Trustee intends to send further notices to holders as material developments occur. Holders with 
questions about this notice should direct them to: Sandra Spivey, Vice President, U.S. Bank National 
Association, Nevada Financial Center, 2300 West Sahara, Suite 200, Las Vegas, Nevada 89102 
(telephone: (702) 251-1656; email: sandra.spivey@usbank.com). Holders with questions may also 
contact Bondholder Services at (800) 934-6802, option 7. 

Other information concerning the Bonds can be found on the Municipal Securities Rulemaking 
Board ("MSRB") website at vvww.emma.msrb.org.

-1-



Please note that the Trustee may conclude that a specific response to particular inquiries from individual 
holders is not consistent with equal and full dissemination of information to all holders. Holders should 
not rely on the Trustee as their sole source of information. The Trustee makes no recommendations and 
gives no Tax advice. 

U.S. Bank Trust Company, National Association, September 4, 2024 
as Trustee 

*CUSIP numbers are included solely for the convenience of Bondholders. The Trustee shall have no responsibility with respect to the selection or 
use of any CUSIP number, nor is any representation made as to the correctness of any CUSIP number, either as printed on any Bond or in this 
Notice. 

-2-



www.desertmtncorp.com 

1930 S Alma School, Ste B-219, Mesa AZ 85210-3045 

Office: 480-588-6327 

CUSTOMER ESTIMATE 
* * * Good for 30 days from date shown below * * * 

Sales Representative: 
Cell Phone #: 

eMail: 

Landon Dipprey 
602-619-2191 

landon@desertmtncorp.com 

Bill to: Hardin, City of Ship to: City of Hardin Date: 

406 N Cheyenne 9/11/2024 406 N. Cheyenne 

Hardin State: MT MAIN CONTRACT # Hardin, MT 
Zip: 59034 Zip: 59034 

County: Big Horn PURCHASE ORDER # Sales Tax ID#: na 
Site Contact: Michael Hurff AP Name: 

Site Phone#: 406-665-9260 x 118 *FUEL SURCHARGE* AP Phone#: 
PADD4 Ton Site eMail: publicworks@hardinmt.com AP eMail: 

- A TERNAL USE ONLY- DMC Location Code WY01 Mileage from WY01 295 - INTERNAL USE ONLY-

Quantity Unit Item Code / Description Item Notes Price Total 
— 

P 
R 
0 
D 
U 
C 
T 
S 

34 Ton ISRS / Ice Slicer RS Delivered to Storage 199.00 6,766.00 

- 

- 

_ 

S 

E 

R 

V 

I 

C 

E 

S 

34 Ton FSC / Fuel Surcharge 
Determined by Rocky Mountain National Fuel 

Average 
11.900 404.60 

_ 

_ 

_ 

- 

_ 

* Fuel Surcharge May be applied if fuel goes above the per gallon price of $2.59 SUBTOTAL 
** Sales Tax (If Applicable it will be in addition to the SUBTOTAL) SALES TAX* * 

*** Any Stand-by Time associated with contractor delays (pre-watering not complete, shutdowns, MISC 
etc...) will be charged at $140 per hour GRAND TOTAL 

7,170.60 

5000% - 

- 

$ 7,170.60 

Job Descri s tion and S secial Notes 

When placing Order you MUST sign Here 
Signature and Title Date 

Corporate Headquarters Mailing Address: PO Box 1633 Kirtland, NM 87417. 505-598-5730 



RESOLUTION NO. 2387 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF HARDIN, MONTANA CANCELLING THE 2024 
ELECTION FOR THE 2024 LOCAL GOVERNMENT REVIEW STUDY COMMISSION, 
AND DECLARING THE ELECTION BY ACCLAMATION 

WHEREAS, the City of Hardin has determined that one of the candidates for the 
2024 Local Government Review Study Commission was unopposed and the deadline 
for write-in candidates has elapsed with no write-in candidates having filed so that the 
number of candidates is equal to or less than the number of positions to be filled; 

WHEREAS, the City Council is authorized to declare the candidates of the 
unopposed positions elected by acclamation, pursuant to Mont. Code Ann. § 13-1-
403(5) (2023). 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
HARDIN, MONTANA: 

That the City Council of the City of Hardin does hereby cancel the election for the 
2024 Local Government Review Study Commission Members. 

It is further resolved that the following candidates are elected by acclamation: 

1. Jason Stephenson 
2. No Candidate 
3. No Candidate 

Pursuant to Mont. Code Ann. § 13-1-403(5)(b) (2023), the City Council shall fill 
the remaining members by appointment by future resolution. 

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Hardin, Montana, and 
APPROVED this 17th day of September, 2024. 

YEA VOTES NAY VOTES 

CITY OF HARDIN 

BY: 
Mayor 

ATTEST: 
City Clerk 

Page 1 of 1 



RESOLUTION NO. 2388 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF HARDIN, MONTANA AMENDING THE 
ASSESSMENT OF THE COST OF STREET MAINTENANCE IN STREET 
MAINTENANCE DISTRICT NUMBER 1, FOR FISCAL YEAR 2024/2025. 

WHEREAS, pursuant to its authority under Mont. Code Ann. § 7-12-4404 (2023), 
and Hardin Municipal Code § 9-5-1, maintenance in the street maintenance district is 
provided by contract or by forces employed by the City, or both; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to its authority under Mont. Code Ann. § 7-12-4422(2)(a) 
(2023), and Hardin Municipal Code § 9-5-2, the cost of street maintenance in said street 
maintenance district shall be levied and assessed on each lot or parcel of land within such 
districts for that part of the whole cost which its area bears to the area of the entire district, 
exclusive of streets, avenues, alleys and public places as set forth in this Resolution; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to its authority under Mont. Code Ann. § 7-12-4425(1) (2023), 
the City Council shall estimate, as near as practicable, the cost of maintenance in each 
established district annually, not later than the second Monday in August; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to its authority under Mont. Code Ann. § 7-12-4425(1) (2023), 
the City Council shall pass and finally adopt a resolution specifying the district assessment 
option and levying and assessing all the property within the district with an amount equal to 
not less than 75% of the entire cost of said work; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to its authority under Mont. Code Ann. § 7-12-4425(2) (2023), 
the resolution levying the assessment to defray the cost of maintenance shall contain or 
refer to a list of the lots or parcels of land assessed, with the name of the owner thereof, 
and the amount levied thereon set opposite; 

WHEREAS, the assessment for 2024 for all non-agricultural property as determined 
by the State of Montana Assessor's Office has been determined to be 0.011148 dollars per 
square foot for each non-agricultural lot or tract up to ten acres and 0.0057 dollars for each 
square foot in excess of ten acres, with a maximum assessment of Three Hundred Fifty-
Four Dollars and Sixty-Nine cents ($354.69) on any residential lot or tract, as classified by 
the State of Montana Assessor's Office; and 

WHEREAS, the assessment for 2024 for all agricultural property as determined by 
the State of Montana Assessor's Office has been determined to be $4.9646 per acre. 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Hardin had previously passed Resolution 
2378 on August 6, 2024 which set the assessments for Street Maintenance District 1; 

WHEREAS, the City has discovered an error in Exhibit A of Resolution 2378, in that 
it omitted parcel L148000 and L248200, which were annexed into the City since tax year 
2023. 

Page 1 of 3 



NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL FOR THE CITY OF 
HARD IN, MONTANA, as follows: 

1. That the cost of sweeping and maintenance of the streets and avenues in Street 
Maintenance District No. 1 in said City, including the cost of sweeping parks, public places, 
the intersections of streets and alleys, be assessed at Four Hundred Eighty-Seven 
Thousand, Three Hundred Sixty-Seven Dollars ($487,367) for the 2024 tax year. 

2. That the total cost of the assessment for the 2024 tax year be assessed against each and 
every lot or parcel of land in Street Maintenance District No. 1 shall be 75% of the estimated 
cost which is Three Hundred Sixty-Six Thousand, One Hundred Four Dollars and Twelve 
cents ($366,104.12) according to the following: 

a. All non-agricultural property as determined by the State of Montana 
Assessor's Office has been determined to be 0.011148 dollars per square foot for 
each non-agricultural lot or tract up to ten acres and 0.0057 dollars for each square 
foot in excess of ten acres, with a maximum assessment of Three Hundred Fifty-
Four Dollars and Sixty-Nine Cents ($354.69) on any residential lot or tract, as 
classified by the State of Montana Assessor's Office; and 
b. All agricultural property as determined by the State of Montana Assessor's 
Office has been determined to be $4.9646 per acre. 

3. That the City Finance Officer shall prepare a list containing the description of each lot or 
parcel of land, the name of the owner if known, and the amount of the assessment against 
each lot or parcel of land for the 2024 tax year, and said list shall be incorporated herein by 
reference and attached hereto as Exhibit A. 

4. That said assessment for each lot or parcel in Street Maintenance District No. 1 shall be 
placed on the 2024 tax roll and shall be collected in two installments in the same manner as 
other taxes. 

5. That all money collected in accordance herewith shall be credited by the City Finance 
Officer to the Street Maintenance District No.1 Fund. 

6. That the installments shall become delinquent at 5:00 p.m. on the 30th day of November, 
2024 and 5:00 p.m. on the 31st day of May, 2025, when such payments are due and 
payable. 

7. That if an assessment becomes delinquent, the property shall be sold in the same 
process and procedure that other property is sold for delinquent unpaid taxes. The monies 
collected under this resolution shall be paid into the Street Maintenance Fund for the City of 
Hardin, Montana. 

Page 2 of 3 










































































































